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JANTI.COUNTERFEIT AUTHORITY (ACA)
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

I. ACRONYMS, ABBREVIATIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TERMS

A. Acronyms and Abbreviations

ACA
AI)R
A-I.A
AIMS
CSR
DI.ID
ED
FY
t]ELI]
uR
IP
IPR
IPSAS
IT
KPI,C
MI'P
NI]MN
NHIF-
NSSI.'
OSI]A
PAYI]
PFM
PS

SCNC
SD(J
wH'f
MIl'I

Anti-Counterfbit A uthority
Altemative [)ispute Rcsolulion
Appropriation in Aid
ACA Intcgrated Management Systenrs
Corporate Social Responsibility
Deparlmenl ltrr Intcmational Developmcnl
[]xecutive Direclor
I"inancial Year
I Iigher Education l.oans Board
I Iuman Resource
Inlellectual Property
Intcllectual Property ILights
Intemational Public Seclor Accounling Standards
Inlormation'l'echnology
Kenya Powcr & Lighting Company
Medium 'l erm l)lan
National [ ]nvironment Management Authority
National []ealth Insurancc Fund
National Social Security lfund
Occupational Sat-ety and I Iealth Administration
I)ay As You liarn
I)ublic F-inance Managemcnt
Principal Secretary
State Corporations Advisory Committee
Suslainable Devclopmcnt (ioals
Withholding 'l'ax

Ministry olTradc. Invcslnlent and Induslry

B. Glossary of Terms
Comparative Year - Mcans thc prior pcriod.
Complainant - Means a person- institution, g()\crnnlenl ag,ency or statc corporation entilled to lay a
complainl under section 33( l), or u'ho has laid such a complainl.
Consumer - Includes any member ol'lhe public or person uho purchascs or likely to purchase goods
as an end user olher than the owner ol'intcllcclual property right.
Counterfeiting - Means manufhcture. production. packaging. re-packaging. labelling or making,
without the authority ol'the owner of intellcctual property right subsisting in Kenya or outside Kenya
in rcspect of protected goods.
Counterfeit goods - Means goods thal arc the result ol'counterl'eiting any item that bears an intellectual
property right. and includcs any mcans used lbr purposes and counterl'eiling.
Counterfeit goods depot - Means a place designatcd as such undcr Scction 29 ofthe Anti-Counterleit
Act.2008.
Fiduciary Management - Mcmbers ol'Management directly entrusted with the responsibility ol'
linanciirl rcsourccs ol' the organisatirrn.
Recordation of iiitellectual propert) rights - ltel'ers to thc process of collecting and enterinB into an

electronic database. inlbrmation fiom Intellectual Property Rights owners regarding their registcred
I PRs.
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ANTI.COUNTERFEIT AUTHORITY (ACA)
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ]UNE 30, 2023t II. KEY AUTHORITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

(a) Background information

The Anti-Counlerf'eit Authority was established under Section 3 of the Anti-Countertbit Act
No. I 3 of 2008 as a corporate body under the Slate Corporations Act, Chapter 446 of the Laws
of Kenya.

The Authority tblls within the Ministry of' Trade, Inveslment and Industry (MITI) that is
mandated to provide a policy framework and an enabling environment lbr lrade. investment
and industry development in Kenya. 'lhe Ministry is expected to play a key role in the
realization of Kenya Vision 2030 whose goal is to make Kenya a newly industrializing, middle-
income economy by the year 2030.'lo achieve this goal, the economy is expected to grow at

l0%o per annum. Six economic sectors have been identified to generate this growth. These are

tourism, agriculture, manut'acturing, wholesale and relail trade, business process outsourcing
and llnancial services.

(b) Principal Activities
The principal mandate olthe Authority is outlined in section 5 of the Anti-Counterl'eit Act,
2008 as follows:

i) Enlighten and inlbrm the public on malters relating to counterfeitingi
ii) Combat counterf'eiting, trade and other dealings in counterleit goods in Kenya;
iii) Devise and promote training programs on combating counterl'eiting:
iv) Co-ordinate with national, regional or intemational organizations involved in combating

counterfeiting;
v) Advise the government through the Cabinet Secretary on policies and measures conceming

the necessary support, promotion and protection of intellectual property rights as the extent
ol'counterl'eiting;

vi) To carry out inquiries, studies and research into matters relating to counterf'eiting and the
protection ol intellectual prope(y rights:

vii)Carry out any other functions prescribed fbr it under any ofthe provisions of this Act or under
any other wrilten law; and

viii) Perform any other duty that may directly or indirectly contribute to the attainment of the
fbregoing.

Vision

A counterfeit-liee Kenya

Mission

Promote legitimate trade through the enfbrcement of Inlellectual Property Rights

Strategic Objectives

l. To engage with key stakeholders to increase the level ol'awareness about counterfeitingi
2. To buitd strategic alliances with domestic and intemational partners:

3. To enhance IPR compliance lbr business efficiency;
4. To plan and enhance data-driven decision making to inlbrm policy, awareness and

enforcementl

iiill'agc'



JANTI-COUNTERFEIT AUTHORITY (ACA)
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

5. 'l'o enhance institulional capacity and sustainabilityr and
6. -l'o 

develop a service-levcl culturc.

(c) Key Management

'l'he Authority's day-to-day nlanagement is undcr the lbllowing key organs

No.

l.

2.

J.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

I l.
12.

13.

14.
15.

16.

17.
,I8,

19.

20.

ivll'age

Designation
Chairpcrson, IJoard ol' Direclors

lJoard ol' I)irector

Board of Dircctor
Board of Director
Board ol Director
lJoard ol I)ireclor
Iloard of [)irector
l]oard of [)irector
Ilxccutive I)irsctor
Director Legal Services

Dircctor Rcsearch. Planning & l)ublic Awarcncss
Director Corporale Scrvices

Director - Enl'<rrce ment
I)irector- Intemal Audit & Risk Assurance
l)eputy Dircctor, l:ducation and Public Awarencss
Deputy Director. I Iuman Resource & Adminislralion
Deputy Director. Legal Services

[)eputy Dircctor. Iinlilrccmenl
Deputy Director, Planning and Quality Assurance
Deputy Director. Research & Policy

Name

Mr. Josphat Kabeabea
L1. Col (Rtd.) tlemard
Njiraini
Ms. Magdalenc Munyao
Mr. Julius Chege Macharia
Mr. Joel Bctt
Ms. Scholastica Mbilo
Mr. Anthony Mwangi
Mr. Oliver Konje
Dr. Robi Mbugua Njoroge
Mr. Johnson Adera
[)r. John Akotcn
Ms. Rephah Kitavi
Mr. Yussul'Osman Ahmed
Mr. Douglas Nyangarcsi
Ms. Agnes Karingu
Ms. Mary Mwinga
Mr. Naylor Mukolu
Mr. Lindsay Kipkemoi
Ms. Nelly Chepngetich
Mr. Henry Omusundi Maina

(d) Fiduciary Managcment

'l'he key managcmcnt personnel who held ollice during the flnancial year ended 30'h June 2023
and who had direct tiduciary responsibility were:

No. Designation Name
I l]xeculive l)irectttr I)r. Robi Mbugua Njoroge'

2 l)ircctor Legal Serviccs Mr. Johnson Adera
3 [)irector Rcsearch. Planning & ['ublic Awarcness [)r. John Akoten
4 Dircctor Corporalc Serviccs Ms. Rephah Kitavi
5 Director Iinlbrccmcnt Mr. Yussuf Osman Ahmed
6 Dircctur- Internal Audit & Risk Assurance Mr. Douglas Nyangarcsi
7 [)eputy Director. l.]ducalion and Public Awarencss Ms. Agnes Karingu
8 Deputy Director. I luman Resource & Administration Ms. Mary Mwinga
9 Deputy Dircclor, l.egal Services Mr. Naylor Mukolu
10 l)eputy Director, l]nfbrccment Mr. Lindsay Kipkemoi
I I Deputy Director. Planning and Quality Assurance Ms. Nelly Chepngetich
12 Deputy Direclor. Research & Policy Mr. Henry Omusundi Maina
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l3
14

l5
l6

vll'agc

Depol Manager
Head of ICT
Head ol Procurement
Head of Recordation

I;redrick Chepkwony
I lenry Mirugi
l'lf'fie Aluoch
Caspar Oluoch

(e) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

The Authority has put in place measures and structures to enfbrce fiduciary and oversight
arrangcments lo ensure compliance. The Authority which is the overall govemance organ,
comprises lour key committees namelyl Tcchnical Committee, Finance, I{uman Resource and
General-Purpose Committee. Lcgal and Enfbrcement Committee and Audit & Risk Committee.

These committees provide policy direction and oversight to the Authority's managemenl while
advising the Board on various policy matters relating to its mandate.'l-he main objective olthe
Audit and Risk Clommittee is to assist the Board in discharging its duties in relation to
sal'eguarding of'assets, lhe operation oladequate syslcms, control processcs and the preparation
of accurate llnancial reporting and statements in compliance with all applicable Icgal
requirements and accounting standards.

Further the Authority submits its quarterly t'inancial statements to the National Treasury
through its parent ministry and annual ljnancial statements Io the Otllce of the Auditor General
tbr audit. In addition, the Authority has in place an approved Finance policies and procedures
manual.

(f) Entity Headquarters

P.O. Box 47771 -00100
National Water Plaza. 3rd lloor
Industrial Area. Dunga- Machakos Road Junclion
Nairobi. Kenya

(g) Entity Contacts

Telephone: (+254)-(0)20-2280000
E-mail: inlb@aca.go.ke
Website: u'rr*.aca.go.kc

(h) Entity Bankers

Kenya Commercial Bank
Kipande House Branch
P.O. Box 3001 2 - 00 I 00
Nairobi - Kenya
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(i) IndependentAuditors

Auditor General
Office of the Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, University Way
P.O. Box 30084- 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

fi) Principal Legal Adviser

The Attorney General
State Law Office and Departrnent of Justice
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

j
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ANTI-COUNTERFUIT AtTTIIORITy (ACA)
ANNUAL IIF]PORT AND FINANCIAI, S]'ATEMtiNl'S
I.-OR TltE YEAR ENDED IUNE 30, 2023

L ilt. 'IHL tX)AtU) Ot' I)lRl.tcl'Otrs
lhc Boartl ol l)ircctors ol lhc Arrthorilr arc

Hon. Josphat Kabeabea has

career in industrial leadership
of organisations with over 20
He was bom in 1975.

a long outstandi
and transformation
years' experience.

Hon.,losphat (iichungc ll ir:rbua
Kaherhca
('hairpcrson. Iloard o l' I)ircctors

l)r. Robi !Ihugua Njorogc
lirccul ivc I)ircclor

He holds a Master of Science from the Makerere
University. He has a background in Micro-
enterprise Development, leadership, governance
and policy development.

He u'orked in micro industrial technology transfer
programme project by World bank and Ministry of
Labour.

Hon. Kabeabea served as a Member of Parliament
tbr Tigania East Constituency building capacity in
budget making. oversight and leadership of the
constituency.

He has wealth ofknowledge ranging tiom the real
estate. distribution and manufacturi
Dr. Robi Mbugua Njoroge has over 20 years'
experience gained in both public and private
sectors. He was bom in 1974. Previously. Dr.
N joroge served as the Chief Executive Oflicer of
Kenya Association of Music Producers (KAMP).
He has also served as board member of the Media
Council of Kenya (MCK). Tom Mboya University
College. and Public Relations Society ol Kenya
(PRSK).

Dr. Njoroge holds a PhD degree fiom Kenyatta
University; a Master's degree in Intellectual
Property (MIP) fiom Alrica University,
Zimbabwe; a Bachelor of law (LLB) from Mount
Kenya lJniversity and Bachelor of Education
(Arts) tiom Ege(on University and a post
Graduate Apbrd!-I4ele Communication.

r ii I l'rL :' .



JANTr-COUNTTiRFETT AUTr TORTTY (ACAI
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINAN(:IAI, STATI-]MENTS
FOR TIIE YI]AR ENDED ]UNE 30, 2023

l,l. ('ol. (littl) llernartl N. r.',jiraini
\larra!inu I)irector- Kcnl a IlurcaLr ol'
Standards(Kl:llS )

I\l rs. I,)sthcr Nga ri
r\g. \lanaging [)ircctor. Kcrrt l I]ureatr o1

Standards (KlrllS)

Lt. Col. (Rtd) Bemard Njiraini is a holder of
Masters of Science in Mechanical Engineering
and Post Graduate Diploma in Strategic Studies.
He is a member of the Institution of Engineers ol
Kenya (lEK). He was bom on l6th August.l97l.
As a military officer he has anended various
leadership andcommand courses including Grade
2 Staflf command.
He served as a board member until 186 May 2023.

Mrs. Esther Ngari, has Masters in Business
Administration from Jomo Kenyatta University ol
Agriculture and Technology. She was bom in
1973.
AIso holds a Certificate fiom Chartered Institute
of Purchasing and Supplies-United Kingdom.
She has been the Director for Standard
Development and Trade at KEBS in addition to a
Quality Assurance, Research and Development
Manager at Kenya Meat Commission.

She is the acting Managing Director, Kenya
Bureau of Standards (KEBS) and became a Board
Member oIACA eff'ective l9h May 2023.

a

Mr. Joel is a holder of Masters in Economics and
Bachelor of Economics both from the University
of Nairobi. He was bom in 1978.
He is currently the Principal Economist at the
National Treasury and Planning and was
previously the senior Economist at the Ministry of
Industrialization and Enterprise Development.

Mr. ,krcl llett
Ilcprcsentatir c ol l)S. Natiorral I rcasurr
i[](l I)lilr)n i E

riii ll'.r r.
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lllagdale nc Nzisa IIunl ao
lntlepcndent IJoarcl Mcnrbcr'

Scholastica Mbilo
l{cprsscntati\e ol thc Atlorncr (icncnrl

Magdalene is an Expert in Intellectual Property
Law and Anti-counterfeiting with 21 years
working experience in both Private and Public
Sector. She was bom in 1976. She holds an MBA
and Bachelor of Laws both from the University of
Nairobi. Post Graduate Diploma from Kenya
School ol Law and is Commissioner for Oaths and
Certifi ed Public Secretary.
Magdalene has had a Trans-National career in
Legal. Brand Protection and Anti-counterfeiting
covering 9 countries within Africa with l5 yean
at Senior Management level. She was the first
Director- Enforcement and Legal Services at the
inception of the Anti-counterfeit Agency.
Magdalene has previously served as a Board
Director at the Kenya National Trade Corporation
Board as well as Corporation Secretary at the
National Aids Control Council. She also served as

the Chairperson of the Anti-Counterfeiting
Committee of the Kenya Association of
Manufacturers for 7 ears

Scholastica Mbilo is a highly skilled attomey with
over l7 years in-depth knowledge and experience
in public law litigation. democracy, govemance
and employment matters. She was bom in 1980.
She is a certified mediator and a Certified
Secretary.

Her core values include professionalism, integrity
and accountability. She is currently a Deputy
Chief State Counsel working with the Offrce of the
Attomey General and Department of Justice.

ir I l' .i : .
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l\l r. Julius ('hcgc \lacharia
Ilcprcscntati\ c ol ('orrrrnissioncr (icrrcral
Kcnr a lle r cnue ..\rrlhoritr

M r. Olile r Kon.jr
lleprcscrttalir c Nlinistrl ol l mtle.
In\ cstnlcnt irrrd lrrdustrr (\llll)

Mr. Chege Macharia is currently the Deputy
Commissioner fbr Border Control and
Enlbrcement at Kenya Revenue Authority (KRA).
He was bom in 1967.
He holds a Master's Degree in Sociology
(Criminology) from the University of Nairobi and
a Bachelor's degree in Human Resource
Management l'rom Kenyatta University.
Prior 1o this deployment. Mr. Macharia was a
Chief Manager in the Intelligence and Strategic
Operations Department in KRA. He has also
worked for the Directorate of Criminal
Investigations (DCI) as a Chief Inspector. During
his tenure at the DCI, he gained extensive
experience in fraud investigations. intelligence
collection. enforcement skills and presentation of
evidence belbre Court.
As the Deputy Commissioner in charge of Border
Control and Enforcement. he is spearheading
initiatives geared towards enhancing security and
border protection within the country such as the
acquisition and deployment of drones for
surveillance along the borders and also for
supporting marine operations. initiating a K9
Centre that will include K9 breedi and trainin
Mr. Konje has been an altemate Director at EPC
and later at KEPROBA. He was bom in 1963.
Appointed Co-Chair with SCAC to Merge Export
Promotion Council and Brand Kenya Board to
fbrm Kenya Export Promotion and Branding
Agency (KEPROBA), which was very successful
and thereafler, appointed by the Oflice of
President to be part of the team to Merge 5 State
Corporation Agencies; KEPROBA, Kenya
Yearbook, Kenya Investment Authority and
Kenya Tourism Board in 2021 .1n2022 appoinled
to Merger Implementation Committee by Oltce
of the President to Merge KEPROBA, KTB and
Tourism Research Institute to form Promotion
Kenya.
Mr. Konje handles trade negotiations Bilaterally.
Regionally and Multilaterally, promotes Trade

r I l',r

activities and Development of Trade Policies.
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Mr. .lamcs Wang'ombc
Reprcsentative of' lnspcctol Gcneral ol'
Statc ('o rat ton s

?
Mr. Antonl Mwangi
CLO. Kcnl a Association o1'

Manul'acturers K

xill'lgc

Mr. Karanja Njora
Rcpresentative. PS Statc Dcpartmcnt ol'
Industry

Mr. Karanja Njora holds a Master of Arts in
Public Administration and Management from
Mount Kenya University. He was bom in 1965.
He has worked at Senior Public Administration
level for over 17 (years) as a Senior District
Officer, District Commissioner and County
Commissioner.
He currently works at the State Departsnent of
Industry. He was appointed as a repr€sentative of
the PS, State Department of Industry effective 26s
laruary 2023.

Mr Wang6mbe is an Economist by professiorl he
holds a Masters in Business Administration and he
is member of Information Systern Audit and
Control Association (ISACA). He was born in
1963.
He has over 30 years of experience in Public
Service having served in the planning and
oversight sectors.
He is currently a Deputy Inspector with the
Inspectorate of State C orporations.

Mr. Mwangi has a Masters' Degree in public
management from SEathmore Business School, a
Bachelor's degree from University ofNairobi and
a certificate of Public Policy from New York
University (NYU). He was bom in 1974.
He is an mcomplished professional in govemance
& regulatory Affairs, public pollcy,
communication, stakeholder management and
business development across various industries in
transportation, ICT, aviation and Oil & Gas.

He is the CEO at Kenya Association of
Manufacturers (KAM) and became a board
member effective 2l't Seprember 2022.
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Mr. Johnson Adera
Director- Lcgal Services & Corporation
Secretary

Cudfed Socrttry ed ra;dlcdlfltodcry
of I@n lEd Inciu,l eq*iFa q?F#iF,

.,,,i'.

llo ir clntotty &o Dirc frpc egtfl+Gd
Cdgofld,msG.ectary. .
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I IV. MANAGEMENT TEAM
ement team is com sed of the followiThe man

Nrme of the Steff Responsibility

Dr. Robi Mbugua Njoroge
Executive Director
Ph.D.
M.A. in Communication Studies
Master's in Intellectual Property (MIP)
LLB. B.Ed

The Executive Director is responsible to the Board
in implementing the Authority's Policy on
fighting Counterfeiting; managing day to day
activities of the Authority; and identifring,
formulating and recommending strategic issues to
the Board.

Dr. Akoten is responsible for: Coordinating
development of short-, medium- and long-term
institutional strategies.
Coordinating of intemal and extemal research,
awareness programs in the Authority, and
participating in the raining of high-level
delegations.
Also liaising with the relevant ministries and
institutions to develop and review curricula on
Intellectual property rights at all levels of
education; Developing of proposals for donor
funding; Coordinating development of a robust
performance management system and overseeing
implementation of performance contracts as well
as their monitoring and evaluation at all levels &
Coordinating development of systems, policies
and OMS procedures.

Dr. John Akoten
Director- Research, Awareness, Policy
and Quality Assurance
PhD, MSc, BSc

7 -t_ 5

*

Mr. Johnson Adera

Mr. Adera is responsible for coordinating the
preparation of respective board papers.

Initiating policy research on legal issues,
Reviewing legal documents/instruments, opinions
and briefs. Taking legal actions where necessary
to protect the interests of the Authority in
pusuance of its mandate; Liaising with extemal
law firms on litigation involving the Authority
either in pursuance of its mandate or other claims;
Providing legal counsel on legal and legislative
issues impacting on the Authority; Providing legal
support and services to the prograrnmes in which
the Authority will be involved and advising the
Authority on legal issues: Coordinating

xiiilPrge
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Director- Legal Services & Corporation
Secretary
I,LM, LLB, CS(K)

prosecution ofcases arising out ofEnforcement of
the Act; and carrying out the roles and
responsibilities of Corporation Secretary as
detailed in Mwongozo.

Ms. Rephah Kitavi
Director- Corporate Services
Msc. Finance, BA (Econ), CPA (K),
CISA

Ms. Kitavi is responsible for Coordinating and
overseeing recruitment, selections and
promotions; Designing and implementing of an
Accounting and Financial management system;
Ensuring prudent management of financial,
human and physical resources of the Authority;
Coordinating the development and overseeing
implementation of the Authority's Corporate
Communication Strategy and oversee its
implementation and Coordinating the branding of
the Authority and it's promotion both locally and
intemationally.

Mr. Yussuf Osman Ahmed
Director - Enlbrcement
Master, Intellectual Property Rights,
B Ed. (Science ),
Diploma Intellectual Property Rights

Mr. Osman coordinates the development and
implementation of short-, medium- and long-term
institutional strategies in enforcement.

Coordinating the preparation of respective board
papers; Supervising, training and developing the
staff in the department; Coordinating and
supervising field enforcement servicesi
Overseeing preparation of work plans and
budgetary proposals and proper management of
the resources allocated to the department;

Mr. Douglas coordinates the preparation of
respective board papers; Oversees the
development and continuous review and
assessment of the intemal audit and corporate risk
management strategies, policies, guidelines,
procedures and frameworks; Provides leadership
in the establishment and implementation of an
integrated intemal audit system in accordance
with Sec 73 of the Public Finance Management
Act 2012 and Intemational Auditing Standards;

Mr. Douglas Nyangaresi
Director- Internal Audit & Risk
Assurance
Msc. Finance, BSc. CPA (K)

xivlPlge
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Mrs. Agnes Karingu
Deputy Director- Education and Public
Awareness
MBA, BSc

Mrs. Karingu is responsible for development of
training manuals, brochures, pamphlets and other
publications on counterfeit matlers; organizing
and conducting regular awareness workshops and
information sessions for the public in order to
sensitize them on the dangers of counterfeit
products.

Mr. Naylor Mukofu
Deputy Director- Legal services
Advocate of the Hieh Court, LLM, LLB

Mr. Mukofu is responsible for advising on
amendment and drafting of legislation in relation
to the Authority, negotiation and drafting of
commercial contracts, intemational agreements,
treaties and protocols on behalf of the Authority.
Further, he is responsible for the provision oflegal
support and counsel and/or legal advice on all
matters involving the Authority as well as

ensuring creation of an enabling legal and
regulatory framework and protection of the
Authority's property and interests.

Mrs. Mwinga is responsible for Developing and
reviewing on a continuous basis the training
policies for staff to ensure relevance and
adherence to the laid down policies and
guidelines.

Coordinating recruitments, appointments and
promotions exercises; upholding staff discipline
and secretary to the disciplinary committee;
Establishing and maintaining a registry for proper
storage of the Authority's documentation and
files; Formulating and reviewing on continuous
basis terms and conditions of service and
Coordinating transport activities for the Authority
both intemal and overseas;

Mrs. Mary Mwinga
Deputy Director- Human Resource and
Administration
MA. BA. Higher Diploma HR

t'
-a-
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Mr. Lindsay Kipkemoi
Deputy Director - Enlbrcement
Masters in Governance. Peace and
Security Management, B.Sc.

Mr. Kipkemoi enforces measures aimed at
combating counterfeiting and any other dealings
in counterfeit goods by ensuring effective and
efficient investigations. reviewing investigation
files, acting on complaints from the owners of
IPRs and ensuring support for prosecution ofcases
by availing witnesses and exhibits.

Ms. Nelly Chepngetich
Deputy Director - Planning and Quality
Assurance
MBA. B. Com (Accountins), CPA K

Ms. Nelly is in charge of Coordinating
development of a robust performance
management system and oversee implementation
of performance contracts as well as their
monitoring and evaluation at all levels.

She assists in preparation of board papers;
Coordinating preparation of quarterly and annual
performance contract reports; Coordinating
development of systems, policies and quality
management systems (QMS) procedures;
Coordinating the planning process and monitor
implementation of corporate plans and strategies;

Mr. Henry Omusundi Maina
Deputy Director- Research, Strategy and
Policy
Master of Laws in Intemational
Development [.aw and Human Rights.
Post Graduate Diploma Mass
Communication, B. Ed. (Arts),

Mr. Henry is in charge of collecting, collating and
processing research data" disseminating research
findings through publications and presentations at
local and international forums.
ln addition, spearhead the development and
implementation of the Authority's research and
development policy;
Carry out collaborative research with industries
and other stakeholders on the aspects of
counterfeiting; Ensure preparation of quarterly,
biannual and annual implementation reports;
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V. CHAIRMAN'SSTATEMENT

On behalf of the esteemed Board of Directors ol' the Anti-Counterl'eit Authority, it is my

privilege to present the Annual Repo( and Financial Statements for the period ending June 30.

2023.

When I assumed the role of Chairman in the third quarter ol'the 2022-2023 financial year, I

was greeted by a dedicated team of Board members, management. and stalf wholly committed
to our mission of combating countert'eit trade in our country. A significant milestone during my

tenure has been the launch ofthe 3rd ACA strategic plan (202212023 - 202612027), which will
serye as our guiding bcacon tbr the next live years.

The accomplishments ol this fiscal year can be attributed to a realigned strategic lbcus,

emphasizing improved stakeholder relationships within the intellectual property (lP) industry.
including law enlorcement agencies. '['hese partnerships have been instrumental in addressing

the escalating challenges posed by counterlbiting and illicit trade.

Additionally, we have undertaken a comprehensive review ol our enfbrcement strategy,

transitioning from mere regulators to lacilitators of business, in alignment with the Kenya

Kwanza govemment's Boltom-up approach. This approach resonates wilh Kenya's Vision 2030,

MTP lll (2018-2022), Sector Perlbrmance Standards. and global Sustainable Development

Goals.

Overview:
Acknowledging the govemment's priority 1tl support the growh of micro, small, and medium

enterprises, the Authority has embraced innovative approaches to compliance, incorporating
stakeholder engagement and leveraging technology fbr sustainable enforcement.

We have implemented an Intellectual Property Rights Recordation System lor imports into the

country to deter the entry olgoods that inliinge on intellectual property rights.

Furthermore, we are addressing the demand side of counterf'eiting through behavioural change

strategies. By raising consumer awareness and altering attitudes towards counterfeit products

through public awareness campaigns and messaging, we strive to curtail their appeal.

Operating Environment:
During this flnancial year, the Authority's operations were partially afl'ected by the elections,

especially during the llrst and second quarters due to pre and post-election public reaclions.

However, as the year progressed. normalcy retumed. enabling us to carry out more enfbrcement

and public awareness activities, including the successlul launch of the 3rd Anti-Counterl-eit
Strategic Plan and engaging with stakeholders at national and intemational events.
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A key milestone during this time was the hosting of the llrst Intemational Symposium on IP

Protection and Enlbrcemenl (ISIPPE-l ), which fostercd productive discussions on IP matters

in the region, bringing together policymakers. judicial ofllcers. law enlbrcers, industry experts,

research scholars. studenls. media praclilioners, and others.

Stratery:
Considering the complcxity of counterl'eiting and illcgal trade, our authority adopts a

multilaceled approach to fulfil its mandate. We have re-fbcused our strategies by embracing

innovative practices. leveraging technology to combat this menace eflectively.
Through the collaboration of multi-agency teams, including the Kenya Police. Directorate of
Criminal Investigalions, Kenya Revenue Authority, Kcnya Bureau of Standards, Poisons and

Pharmacy Board, and KenTrade, we strive to establish a coordinated ellort in tackling these

challcnges.

By adopting contemporary approaches. such as the "whole-of'-government approach," we aim

to solve public problems more efficiently. Moreover. our collaboration with private and non-

profit partners, including development partners and consumer organizations. seeks to protect

public health and salbty while bolstering the Kenyan economy against unfair trade practices.

Launching the third strategic plan aligns our eflbrts with the Kenya Kwanza Bottoms-Up

Economic Transfbrmation Agenda (Ilti'l'A), Africa Development Agenda 2063, the National

Action Plan to Combat Illicit Trade. the Fo(h Medium-I'erm Plan, and Vision 2030. among

others.

Risk Management:
The Authority adheres to a robust Risk Management Policy and Framework to mitigate and

manage risks that could afi'ect our planned activities. . Various risk registers, including Stralegy

lmplementation Risk. l'-inancial Risk. Business Continuity Risk. and Reputational Risk. have

been established and are closely monitored and evaluated quarterly. This approach enables us

to identify contributing lactors, implement mitigating aclions, and anlicipate outcomes

effbctivelv.

Moreover. we are in the tlnal stages ol automating core operational areas, such as case

management in enlbrcement. Depot Management. and general corporate operations

encompassing human resources, finance. and procurement. The ACA Integrated Management

Systems will further enhance our elllciency and accountability.

Corporate Governance:
At the heart of our governance principles lies the 'Muungo:o' code of govemance lbr state

corporations. Our Board ol Directors are committed to strengthening Boardroom capabilities

and providing policy direction, recognizing that sound corporate govemance is fundamental to

achieving long-term success in executing ACA's strategy.
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Future Outlook:
Our transformative agenda places full automation and digitalization of core operations,

including enforcement and case management, depot management, and intellectual property

rights recording for imports into Kenya, at the forefront. The imminent implementation of the

Anti-Counterfeit Integrated Management System (AIMS) marks the final stage ol this
endeavour.

Our sights are set on achieving full implementation ofthe Recordation of IPR for imports across

all HS Codes, an indispensable tool in preventing the importation of counterfeit goods.

Automation will also bolster transparency and accountability, enhancing overall corporate

perception, trust, and stakeholder support.

With the launch of the 3rd ACA strategic plan for 2022-2027, we eagerly anticipate improved

operational efficiency and effectiveness in combating counterfeit goods. These efforts align

with Kenya Vision 2030, Africa Agenda 2063, and the United Nations' Sustainable

Development Goals.

As the govemment shows unwavering support lor micro, small, and medium enterprises,

fostering innovation mindsets and encouraging value-addition economic activities, we are

optimistic that the Authority will receive increased resource support from the govemment and

private sector, enabling us to achieve our ambitious goals.

Acknowledgments:
I sincerely appreciate all stakeholders, including the Govemment of the Republic of Kenya

through the Ministry of Investment, Trade, and Industrialization, the National Treasury, and the

National Assembly Parliamentary Committee(s) on Trade and Industry, for their continued

lunding and support.

Lastly, I commend my fellow Board members for their unwavering commitment in carrying

out their various committee and full Board roles. A special acknowledgement goes out to the

management and staff ol the Authority lor their professionalism and teamwork, which have

been essential to our achievements. We eagerly anticipate an even beller 2023-2024.

s
Hon. Josphat Gichunge Mwirabua Kabeabea

Chairman of the Board of Directors
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VI. REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Overview
During the tiscal year 202212023, the Anti-Counterf'eit Authority (ACA) underwent significant
changes occasioned by election of a new Kenya-Kwanza govemment whose philosophy is
premised on Bottom-up Transformation Agenda (BETA). The Authority also received a new

Chairman who has played a pivotal role in leading the Board of Directors. The Authority
revamped the 3rd ACA strategic plan (2022/2023 - 202612027) to match the goals of the Kenya
Kwanza Govemment manif'esto.

To improve our service delivery, we shilted our fbcus towards building our human capital,

leveraging on technology, mapping and having robust engagements with our diverse

stakeholders and re-engineering our IPR enlbrcement operations. In this regard, we introduced

innovative measures such as the lntellectual Property Recordation system for imports a

programme aimed at dealing with counterfeit at the source. These actions significantly
strengthened our role in enforcing intellectual property rights.

This achievement resulted from effective collaboration with intemal and extemal stakeholders

in the intellectual prope(y industry. This collaboration fostered better teamwork and a stronger

commitment to our core values: Authenticity, Credibility, and Alertness. We anticipate

achieving even better results as we move forward into the next phase of implementing the

strategic plan for 2022123 - 2026127 .

Performance and Utilization of Funds
I am pleased to report on our financial achievements in the 202212023 fiscal year. Our
commitment to prudent and transparent financial management has yielded positive outcomes,

ensuring the efTective execution ofour mandate.

During this period, we received a total of Kshs. 349,999,999 in recunent tunds lrom the

National Treasury and Planning. This financial support bolstered our operational stability,
empowering us to smoothly carry out dayto-day activities, sustain our operations, and maintain
a skilled workforce.

Our linancial strategy extended beyond reliance on govemment funding. In pursuit offinancial
sustainability, we actively pursued altemative revenue sources. Our efforts in raising

Appropriation in Aid (A-l-A) funds proved successful, generating Kshs. 56,717,386 during the

financia[ year. These lunds originated from diverse channels, including IPR Recordation fees,

compounding f'ees, complaint-related charges, and destruction fees.

The attainment of substantial revenue through A-l-A mechanisms marks a significant milestone

to the Authority. By reducing dependence on govemment budgetary allocations, we will
enhance our resource allocation flexibility for vital operational areas. This supplementary

income will empower the Authority to launch initiatives that effectively combat counterfeiting,
saleguarded intellectual property rights, and heighten public awareness.
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Our adept handling offinancial commitments was a standout facet olour financial perlbrmance

during the 202212023 fiscal year. We take pride in noting that we managed our financial

obligations without any pending bills. This linancial prudence underscores our dedication to

fiscal responsibility and transparent accountability. Through responsible settlement oftlnancial
commitments and efllcient resource managemcnt. we maintained a robust financial standing

and strategically directed resources 10 meet organizational objectives.

As we progress, we focus on flnancial sustainability and judicious resource managemcnt. The

successes achieved in securing govemment lunds and diversilying revenue sources will serve

bedrock lbr future endeavours. Bolstered by ongoing financial stability and effective lund

utilization. we remain committed to eradicating counterfbiting in Kenya, thereby enhance

business environment, promote legitimate trade and transform the country into lbreign direct

investmenl hub.

Annual Work Programme
Addressing counterfbiting and illicit trade remains a complex challenge that requires a

collaborative. multi-agency approach. In light of this, the Authority is steadlast in its

commitment to working closely with national. regional. and intemational law enfbrcement

agencies to effectively combat these issues. By joining forces and sharing resources,

intelligence. and expertise, we can better tackle lhe intricate networks involved in counterf'eit

activities.

As part ofour collaborative ellbrts. we strongly support the national action plan to combat illicit
trade. This comprehensive plan serves as a crucial guide lbr multi-agency teams engaged in

enforcement and public awareness initiatives. By aligning our strategies with this plan. we can

synchronize our actions to achieve a more signilicant impact and promote a united fiont against

counlerl'eiting and illicit trade.

Throughout the fiscal year 202212023, we have bcen proactive in engaging various stakeholders

to raise awareness about the detrimental ef-fects o['countert'eiting on consumers, businesses, and

the economy. Our public outreach activities have been instrumental in reaching out to key

stakeholders, including County Security Committees, County Business Communities. and the

private sector.

These engagements have been supplemenled by media training, enabling us to eflectively
communicate our anti-counterl'eiting message to a broader audience. As a result of our

collective efforts. we have witnessed a positive shift in public awareness on the dangers of
counterfbit goods, with awareness levels increasing from 610/o to 660/o.

ln our pursuit ofenforcing intellectual property rights. we have taken on numerous inliingement

cases throughout the fiscal year. Investigating these cases requires meticulous attention to detail

and the collaboration of various experts. Our dedication to resolving these matters diligently
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has resulted in successlully addressing cases 38. including some thal were carried lorward tiom
the previous year.

We continue to rely on the Balanced Scorecard-based work plan lo ensure we stay on track in
achieving our strategic objectives. This liamework guides us in implementing and monitoring
our initiatives and perfbrmance measures. By measuring our progress against key indicators.
we can identily areas tbr improvement and make data-driven decisions to enhance our
operational el.ficiency.

Technological Advancements
To fbstcr a customer-oriented culture and enhance our operational efliciency, we have laken

signilicant strides in adopting the ACA Integrated Management System (AIMS) driven by ICT
interventions. AIMS is a comprehensive and innovative system that allows us to streamline our
processes, optimize resourcc allocalion, and deliver better services to our stakeholders.

Through AIMS, we have cenlralised and integrated various aspects ofour operations. including
data management, case tracking, and stakeholdcr engagement. This unifled approach has not

only improved communication and collaboration among difl'erent departments but also

facilitated seamless information sharing, leading Io thster decision-making and more e|bctive
enlbrcement etlbrts.

One ol'the most signilicant milestones in our lechnology-driven translbrmation has been the

ongoing implementation ol'the Intellectual Property Recordation System, which commenced

on January 3 I st. 2023. This system has proven instrumental in our fight against countertbiting.
as it has greatly enhanced our ability to identify and deter the importation ofcounterlbit goods

into the country.

The lntellectual Property Recordation System provides a secure and centralized platfbrm tbr
recording and verifuing intellectual property rights tbr imports. This means that businesses and

rights holders can register their trademarks, copyrights, and patents with our Authority, creating

a comprehensive database ol' legitimate intellcctual property rights. Consequently. this
infbrmation allows us to more elllciently identity and intercepl counterl'eit goods attempting to

enter the market. prevenling them liom reaching consumers.

The system's real-time monitoring capabilities provide timely alerts about potential infiinging
activities, enabling swifi and targeted entbrcement actions. By staying one step ahead of
counterl'eiters, we can protcct consumers tiom purchasing lake and potentially harmful
products, sal'eguard lhe inleresls ol legitimate businesses. and preserve the integrity of
intellectual property rights.

Furthermore, the lntellectual Property Recordalion System supports our eflorts in gathering and

analyzing data, allowing us to identify trends. pattems. and emerging threats in counterl'eit ing.
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'Ihis data-driven approach empowers us to allocate our resources strategically, prioritize high-

risk areas, and continuously improve our enlbrcement strategies.

As we continue the implementation of this cutting-edge system, we are committed to expanding

its reach and capabilities fu(her. We aim to position ourselves as a model agency through

ongoing technological advancements and continuous improvements in our ICT inliastructure,

setting the benchmark lbr etllcient and effective intelleclual property entbrcement in the region.

By embracing technology and leveraging the power ol' IC'l', we enhance our enfbrcement

capabilities and rein[brce our commitment to a cuskrmer-oriented culture. We remain dedicated

to providing prompt and etlective solutions to our stakeholders while championing the cause

of saf'eguarding intellectual property rights and promoling a counterfeit-tiee environment in

Kenya.

Risk Management and ISO Compliance
We have always recognized the importance ol' mainlaining robust internal processes and

ensuring compliance with industry slandards to uphold the highest level of service delivery. To

achieve this, we have implemented comprehensive risk management and ISO (lnternational

Organization for Standardization) compliance activities.

Risk Management: Our risk management framework is designed to identily. assess, and address

potential risks that could aftect the achievement of our strategic objectives. We conduct

thorough risk assessments regularly, involving key stakeholders from various departments to

comprehensively evaluate potential risks. By adopting a proactive approach, we aim to mitigate

risks befbre they escalate into significant issues.

We have established risk management protocols thal oulline risk identification, analysis.

evaluation, and responsc planning processes. This structured approach enables us to prioritize

risks based on their potential impact and likelihood. allowing us to allocate resources elliciently
1o address them effectively.

Furthermore, we havc developed risk mitigation slrategies that are aligned with our

organizational goals, ensuring that our actions align with our broader mission and vision. This

not only helps us sal'eguard against potential disruptions bul also enhances our ability 1o seize

opportunities and achieve positive outcomes.

ISO Compliance: To further strengthen our internal processes and ensure excellence in our

operations, we have embraced ISO standards. intemationally recognised benchmarks lbr
quality management. Our commitment to ISO compliance demonstrates our dedication to
providing consistent, high-quality services to our stakeholders.

We have implemented ISO standards relevant to our operations, such as ISO 9001:2015 fbr

Quality Management Systems. Adhering to these standards enables us to streamline our
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processes. improve el)iciency. and enhance customer satisl'action. By lbllowing standardized
procedures and workflows. we minimise the risk ofcrrors and inconsistencies in our services.

Maintaining ISO compliance also requires regular internal audits 1o assess our adherence to the

established standards. 'fhese audits help us identify areas fbr improvement and make necessary

adjustments to optimize our perlbrmance continually.

Moreover. we actively involve our employees in the ISO compliance process by providing them
with appropriate training and resources. This ensures thal everyone in the organization is

lamiliar with the ISO standards and is equipped to contribute to our collective ellbrts in
mainlaining compliancc.

By integrating risk management and ISO compliancc into our organizational culture, we create

a fbundation of stability and excellence. These practiccs scrve as a comerstone fbr achieving
our slrategic objectives and maintaining our commitmcnt ttl delivering exceptional services to
our stakeholders. 'fhrough conlinuous improvemenl and adherence to best practices. w,e aim to
remain a reliable and trustcd authority in combating counterf'eiting and protecting intellectual
property rights.

Human Capital
During this period. we recruited l4 new stal'l'membors. including One (l) Director,'fwo (2)

Doputy Direclors, Seven (7) Anti-Counterf'eit pcrsonnel and F-our (4) operations slal'I. While
our current approved establishment allows lbr 250 stafl, our recruitment efforts will conlinue
to altracl skilled individuals liom both public and private sectors to bolster govemmenl ellbrts
in sat'eguarding innovalors liom counterl-eiting. IP righrs intiingement. and illicit rrade.

'fo motivate and support our stal}. we have consislently compensated them and provided

necessary adminislrativc and operational facilities. Wc also tbcused on stalf training and

upskilling to enhance overall organizational perfirrmance.

Mentorship and Industrial Placements

We engage and hire interns/attaches to provide menklrship and industrial placements fbr
leamers in critical areas. Irurthermore. the implementalion of our culture and change

management program rcmains ongoing lo fbster teamwork. group cohesion. and statf
perlbrmance.

Future Outlook
In our upcoming slratcgies. collaboration remains a central pillar. Establishing liuitlul
pa(nerships with stakeholdcrs liom both public and private sectors is pivotal to accomplishing
our shared objectivc: advancing and saf'eguarding intellectual property by swilily implementing
essential technologies.

The enthusiastic reception ol'the IPR Recordal Systcm holds paramount importance in our

battle against counterf'cit imports and in generating additional A-l-A funds to bolster the
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Authority's resources. especially when confronted with limited financial support from the

exchequer.

In our pursuit of becoming a pioneering fbrce and an innovative govemment entity, we are

committed to reintbrcing our market research tunction. This enhancement will lacilitate data-

centric decision-making as we execute our mandate. acknowledging the ever-evolving

landscape of global criminal aclivities linked to intellectual property thefl.

Furthermore, we intend to hamess technology to counteract the emerging misuse of digital
markets, where the prevalence ol online sales involving infiinging intellectual property

products has surged.

Appreciation
I wish to take a moment to deeply appreciate the Chairman, the esteemed Board ol Directors,

the dedicated Management team, and our incredible statf at the Anti-Counterfeit Authority tbr
their steadlast commitment and support have been nolhing short of remarkable during this

phase.

I also want to extend our sincere gratitude to all our stakeholders. both in the public and private

sectors. Your collaboration has been instrumental in our progress. Special thanks go to our

valued development partners, with a spotlight on lhe Ministry of Industrialization. Trade. and

Enterprise Development, as well as the National Treasury, tbr their consistent funding and

policy leadership.

Furthermore, our appreciation goes oul to our development collaborators, spearheaded by the

World lntellectual Property Organization, the IJS Embassy in Nairobi in partnership with the

US Customs and Border Protection Nairobi. TradeMark Aliica, and the United Kingdom's

Department for lntemational Devclopment (DI]ID). Your support has been invaluable

throughout the llnancial year 2022-2O23.

As we gaze into the future, we are brimming with enthusiasm about our reinvigorated approach

to stakeholder engagement. Our vision remains resolute: to translorm Kenya into a

"Counterfeit-Free" nation and a top-tier investment dcstination. Together. we are poised to

achieve greatness.

-4-
Dr. Robi Mbugua Nioroge

Executive Director/Chief Executive Offi cer
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vII. STATEMENT OF ANTI-COUNTERFEIT AUTHORITY'S PERFORMANCE
AGAINST PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES FOR FY 202212023

Anti-Counterfeit Authority has four (4) key result areas and six (6) strategic objectives within
its Strategic Plan lbr FY 22/2023- 2026/2027. These key result areas are as follows:

Key Result Area l: Enhance slrategic repositioning;
Key Result Area 2: Re-engineer and deliver eff'ective enforcement of intellectual property
rights;
Key Result Area 3: Foster data-driven planning, research and policy; and
Key Result Area 4: Enhance institulional capacity and sustainability.

The Authority develops its annual work plans based on the above key result areas. Assessment
of the Board's performance against its annual work plan is done on an annual basis. The
Authority achieved its performance targets set for the FY 202212023 period for its tbur (4) key
result areas, as indicated in the diagram below:
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The Authority manages performance through the balanced score card system which incorporates
targets from the performance contract as well as the aligned strategic plan targets for the year under
review.
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ANTI.COUNTERFEIT AUTHORITY (ACA)
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023t VIII. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Introduction

l'he Board regards corporate governance as pivotal to the attainment ol the Authority's core
mandates and ensuring that ACA remains el'fective. The Board recognizes that fbr govemance

to be elleclive. it musl be realized through leadership and collaboration, with the Board at the
helm leading by example and supporting the senior management. This enables elfective and

el-ficient decision making and gives a structural aid tbr the management to discharge their duty
to promote the success oIACA while taking into account the interest of stakeholders.

The Board Charter

The Charter is a critical corporate govemance tool of the Board that documents the Board's
composition, roles, and responsibilities. 'fhis ensures the ef'fectiveness of each Director's
contribution to the Authority's govemance by facilitating independenl judgment, decision
making, and professional competencies. The Charter guides the Board in carrying out its
mandate of':

. Appoinlment. induction, skills requirementl

. Articulation ol. and commitment to. respect of the rights ol stakeholders;

. Separation of roles and responsibilities oflhe board's individual director:

. Terms of ref'erence fbr all board members.

l'he Charter does not replace or supersede any statutory laws and regulations thal govem the

Authorily.

The Board Size, Composition & Appointment

The Authority's highest goveming body is the Board. The Board directs the Authority with
leadership, integrity, and judgmcnt in order to achieve long{erm prosperity for the Authority
and its stakeholders. The Anli-Counterf'eil Act, No. l3 ot'2008, specities the composition ol
the Authority's Board. It is made up olthe fbllowing nine people:

l. -l'he Chairperson liom amongst the members appointed by the Cabinet Secretary under
number 8 below:

2. The Principal Secretary in the Ministry 1br the time being responsible for matters relating
Io trade or his or her representative:

3. The Principal Secretary in the ministry lbr the time being responsible for matters relating
to llnance or his or her representative:

4. The Attorney-General or his representative:
5. The Commissioner-General ofthe Kenya Revenue Authority. who may be represented by

the Commissioner of Customs;
6. The Managing Director of the Kenya Bureau of Standards:

7. The Chiel Executive ofthe Kenya Association of Manuf'acturers or his representative;
8. Two members appointed by the Cabinet Secretary, not being public officers with knowledge

on intellectual property rights. consumer protection or trade.
9. l'he Executive Director of thc Authority is an ex olflcio Member of the Board.
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Oversight rolc of the Board

l'he board provides strategic dircction with a lbcus on consistenl perlbrmance in a transparent
and accountable environrnent, as r.r,ell as reviewing and monitoring proper corporate
govemance throughout the Authority.'l'he board's responsibilities are clearly stated in both the
ACA Ac1 and the Board Charter. T'he board defines the Authority's purpose. strategic intent.
objectives, and valucs. It ensures that policies and procedures are in place to saf'eguard ACA's
assets and reputation.

l'he board retains complcte and ell'ective conlrol over ACA and monitors management's
implcmentation olthe board's plans and strategiesl it ensures ethical bchavior and compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, audit and accounting principles. corporale policies and
proccdures. and thc Code of lithics. It strivcs to go abovc and beyond lhe minimum
requirements and compares pcrlirrmance to bcst practiccs liom around the world.

l'he Board is specilically tasked with the lbllowing duties: -

(a) Delining the purpose ol'the ACA. that is. its strategic intenl and objectives. and its values
which should be clear. concise and achievable:

(b) Strategy lbmrulation and cnsuring there are appropriate policies. systems and slruclures 10

eflectively and successlully implemcnt the strategies:

(c) Provide leadership within a liamework of prudenl and el'lective structures which enable
risks to be assessed:

(d) Identily thc opporlunilics as well as the ma.jor risks in its operating environment, including
the development ol'risk policy plans/risk management policies and thc implementation of
appropriatc measurcs to manage such risks or their anticipated impact on operations;

(e) Review on a regular basis the adequacy and integrity of the intemal controls. acquisition
and divestures. management infirrmation systems including compliance with applicable laws
and regulationsl

Board Committees and Responsibilities

In order to l'ulfil its Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements. the Board has established fbur (4)
principal Committees. thc terms o['which set fbrth the committees' purposes. goals. and
responsibilities. as well as qualilications fbr commitlee membership, procedure for appointment
and removal. and committce repo(ing to the Board. T'his is intcnded to lacilitate the Board's
etficient decision-making in carrying out ils dulies and responsibilities.

'l'echnical Commitleet provides oversight on the Authority's research, quality assurance,

education and au arcness I unctions.

2. Finance, IIuman Resource & General Purposcs committee: Reviews the Authority's annual

budgets and procurement plans. quarterly and annual llnancial reports: Provides oversight
on implementation ol'human resource instrumenls. Implementation olthe procurement and

automalion ol'processes within the organization.

3. Audit & Risk Commitleei Revicws llnancial infbrmation and cnsures that the system of
intemal controls is cftectively administercd throughout thc organization.
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4. Legal & Enforcement Committee; Reviews legislative issues impacting on the Authority
and all enforcement of intellectual property rights activities.

The Following is the list of all Board Committee members

Techniccl
Committee

Finance, Human
Resource &
Gcnerd-Purpooe
Committee

Audit& Risk
Committee

Legd&
EnforceEent
CoEmlttce

Anthony Mwangi
(Chair)

Joel Bett
(Chair)

Magdalene Munyao
(Chair)

Esther Ngare
(Chair)

Oliver Konje Julius Macharia Joel Bett Scholastica
Mbilo

Scholastica Mbilo Oliver Konje Anthony Mwangi J ulius
Macharia

Esther Ngare James Wang'ombe Magdalene
Munyao

Karanja Njora Karanja Njora

Board Meetings

During the year under review the Authority's Board held 5 full board meetings. The Human
Resource Committee held 6, meetings, Finance, Human Resource & General Purposes

committee held 6 meetings; Technical Committee held 4 meetings, Audit & Risk Comminee
held 4 meetings and Legal & enlorcement Committee held 4 meetings which were attended as

follows:

Any Other
Meeting e,g.
Induction,
Adhoc, Field
Meetings

l6

26

t7

J

7

Board
Member

Finance,
Human
Resource
& General
Purpose
Committee

Legal &
Enforcement
Committee

Audit &
Risk
Committee
Meeting

No Full
Board

Technical
Committee

Hon.
Josphat
Kabebea

2

2 Flora
Mutahi J

Joel Bett 5 6 4J

4 Bruno
Mugambi
Linyiru I

J

5 James
K.Wang'o
mbe J I
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6

6

23

l6

l7

20

l3

Notes:

I . Hon. Josphat Kabebea (The Chairman) replaced Ms. lrlora Mutahi on lOth Feb, 2023.
2. Mr.James Wang'ombe represents the Inspector Ceneral of State Corporations.
3. Mr. Antony Mwangi of Kenya Association of Manuf-acturers (KAM) replaced Mr. Joseph

Wairiuko

Board Remuneration

In respect ofevery Board meeting, a member present is entitled to a sitting allowance olKshs.
20,000 per sitting. lunch allowance of Kshs. 2,000 (in lieu of lunch being provided).
accommodation allowance and mileage reimbursement where applioable within govemment

set limits lor state corporations. 'l'he Chairman receives a monthly honorarium of Kshs. 80.000

and Kshs. 7,000 airtime allowance.

Conflict of Interest

Board members are obliged to f'ully disclose to the Board during meetings any real or potential

conflict, which comes to any member's attention. whether direct or indirect. Where a member
discloses the conflict of interest, he or she is obligated to exclude himselfTherself from any

discussion or decision over the matter in question.

Board lnduction and Training

New board members are inducted by the Chair ofthe Board and the Executive Director on the

operations of the Authority and the role oithe member in the board. The Authority also builds
the capacity of the board 1o enable them to have an el'fective oversight role on the management.

3

6
2

Joseph
Wairiuko

7 Col. Lt.
(Rrd)
Benard
Niiraini 3 2 2

8 Julius
Chege 5 6 3

4
9 Scolastica

Mbilo 5 4
l0 Oliver

Konie 5 4 6
ll Magdalene

Munyao 4 4 3

I

t2 Esther
Ngari

I3 Karanja
Niora I

l4 Antony
Mwangi l 3 2
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Board Evaluation

Board evaluation is key in assessing the perfbrmance. efficiency and ef-fectiveness of an

organization. Regular performance evaluations also enable the Authority to review its strategies

with a view to ensuring continuous growth and sustainability. During the year, a Board
evaluation exercise was carried out and it was conducted by the State Corporations Advisory
Committee (SCAC) and the Inspectorate of Stale Corporalions.

Code of Conduct and Ethics

Good corporate govemance is ingrained at ACA as a valuable contributor to the Authority's
long+erm success through the creation of the right culture lhroughout the organization. Our
decision-making processes are guided by the core values of Authenticity, Credibility and

Ale(ness. The Authority operates in accordance with applicable legal principles and high
ethical standards. The code and high standards of integrity are expected of the Board,
Management, and employees. Furthermore, these standards apply to all interactions with
customers, suppliers, and other stakeholders.

Employees are expected to adhere to the highest levels of prolessionalism in order to achieve
corporate objectives. Employees are responsible fbr contributing to the Authority's good
govemance and upholding its reputation for integrity both inside and outside the workplace.

The code ol conduct establishes l'undamental principles and guidelines that govem all
employees' ethical and legal responsibilities at all levels. The provisions ofthe Public Ol'ficers
Ethics Act, as well as any other statutes or regulations issued from time to time, apply to all
employees.
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IX. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Operational and Financial Performance

t.r) 1,.\ l ( )l{('1,. \t t..\'l

l. Intellectual Property Rights (IPR) complaints

In the reporting period 202212023, the Authority received and registered 147 IPR complaints.
This was an over 200o/o increment compared to the previous year. However, the number of
complaints received still falls short ofthe highest ever recorded in201912020.

2. Value of Seized Goods

The Authority continues to work toward fulfilling its mandate to seize. dispose and destroy
counterfeit goods. In the ended financial year, the authority seized goods estimated to be worth
Ksh 239,494,262. This was nearly four times the value of seizures done the previous year.
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3. Value of Destroyed Goods

In the reporting period, the Authority destroyed counterf'eit goods worth Kshs. 106,517,769
million. This was more than twice the value of goods destroyed in the previous year.
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ANTI.COUNTERFEIT AUTHORITY (ACA)
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2.0 RECoRDATION AND COMPLIAN('E

The Authority started implementing the recordation process in January 2023. Below is a quick
representation of the trends in the last six months of the reporting peiod 2022/2023. So far
12,534 permits have been issued and 1280 exemptions granted. Jomo Kenyafta Intemational
Airport and Mombasa have the highest traffic for permits at 57 per cent and 22 per cent
respectively.

Number of aoollcatlons processed

793

19

1,1

-ptr{Mrr\{1/,,r14) -rxtMr,ltr-rN\{1 

2r{01

CLUSTER TRAFFIC {PERMITSI
l llarnou-] la'.,^*lI il,rl ^l

ix'a
i',:

xxxvill'agc
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'I'he Authority has in thc last six months rcceivcd I l.l2 recordation applications. Whilc 23 per
cent of'the applications have been approvcd. 24 per cenl have been sent back to thc applicants
lbr more inlirrmation and an cstimated 40 per cent wcre still under rcview at dilt'erent levels
within the organisation.

Status of IPR Recordation as at June 30 2023

o|d. trrJr r*r' '.vrw

. r,. (l I rrJyr'trrlr(f,w

l)uring the rcporting period. the Authority received 62 ll) agent adnrission applications. An
estimaled 55 per ccnt were approved. 267o werc sent back to applicants for more infbrmation
and l4 per cent arc still under review at various levels within thc organisation.

STATUS OF AGENT APPLICATIONS AS AT END OF JUNE 2023

.i.r) I I (, \t \l. lt\ t( I \

Cases on Intellectual Property Right Infringements

In the reporting period.38 cascs were resolved through Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR)
while 40 criminal cases are still pending in the rarious courts. l"urther. as lwo acquittals werc
made hy the courts. fivc fiesh tllcs were registered. and two cases successtully prosccuted
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resulting in convictions with fines totalling Kshs 292,232,560. There are 2l civil cases and 9
civil appeals, and 90 cases on ADR pending at the end of the 202212023 financial year.

J.0 l{l \l \lt( ll.l,()l l( \ \\l) l,l l l( \\\ \l{l \l\\

l. Public Awareness
To tulfil its obligation of enlightening and infbrming the public on matters relating to
counterf'eiting, the Authority continues to conduct different public awareness and oulreach
activities with varied outcomes. In the FY 2022123 the Authorilv conducted the same number
olpublio awareness as the previous l:Y 2021122.
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2. Productive Stakeholder Engagement
To increase the capacity olvarious stakeholders, the Authority built their capacity with requisite
skills and knowledge to deal with countert'eiting issues. The Authority has held fruitfut
stakeholder engagements. The Authority carried out 27 activities in fiscal year 2022123 which
was five more engagements than the previous reporting period.

3. Research activities
Research activities at the Authority are designed to inform policy, enforcement and awareness
activities. Research activities also cover intemal surveys to establish the extent to which intemal
and extemal stakeholders are satisfied with the Authoritv's services.

In the reporting period, the Authority hosted its inaugural Intemational Symposium on
Entbrcement and Protection in Kenya. It was attended by over 500 participants including

xxxixll)age
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delegations liom universities, public and private bodies fiom Uganda, India. USA and the host
country Kenya.

Other research activities carried out in the period under review included:
r National baseline survey on the extent of counterl'eiting and illicit trade in Nairobi
o National consumer survey on awareness o I' counterl'eiting and other forms of illicit trade in

Nairobi
. Market intelligence survey to inlbrm policy, awareness, entbrcement and slrategy
. Customer satislbction surveys
. Employec satisl-action surveys
. Corruption perception surveys

Customer satisfaction index
The Authority is committed 1o serving the public and making sure the services are well delivered.
This reporting period witnesscd a slight decline in customer satislaction.

r
II

xlll'agc



ANTI-COUNTERFEIT AUTHORITY (ACA)
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

L ( ()Iil,()lt \.1 l, sl, lr\ l( l s

l. Government Grants
In the last tive financial years, the Authority has received grants ol Ksh 1,806,434,435. This
means on average the Authority received Ksh 361 ,286,887 per year. However, the last financial
year recorded the receipts ol Ksh 349,499.999.

INCOME (GRANT)

390,000,000.00

380,000,000.00

370,000,000.00

360,000,000.00

350,000,000.00

340,000,000.00

330,000,000.00

320,000,000.00

2. Appropriation-in-Aid
The Authority raises appropriation-in-aid (A-l-A) tiom the lodging of complaints by the IPR
holders or agents. recordation f-ees, impo( iees and disposal of counterf'eit goods. During the
period under review. the Authority raised Kshs. 56.72 million. The table below shows the
income received by the Authority fbr the last 5 years.

APPROPRIATION-IN-AID

2078119 2079120 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
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3. Promotion ofLocal Content in Procurement
The Authority has been implementing the Buy Kenya. Build Kenya policy by procuring goods
and services with local content. In tiscal year 2022123, the value increased from 86.02 million
to 106.15 million.

Procurement spendings

106.15

85.02

51.35
54.13

48.94

26.94
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.2017/7a .2018119 .2019/20 2O2Ol27 .2021/22 .2022123

4. Youth Internships/Industrial Attachments
The Authority has been olfering intemship and industrial attachment opportunities to the youth.
Within the last three financial years the Authority has offered 154 young men (48 per cent) and
women (52 per cent) an opportunity to learn. The reporting financial year has 43 attaches and
l9 interns.
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Authority's Compliance with statutory requirements
The Authority complied with all its statulory obligations in the reporting period. These are

WHT. PAYE, NHIF. NSSF and HEI.B.

Risk Management
The Board conlirms its responsibility for the Authority's system of intemal controls, including

taking reasonable steps lo ensure that adequate systems are being maintained. Etfective intemal

control systems have been operalionalized to assess and mitigate any risks the Authority may

be exposed to.

A comprehensive policy on the risk management framework to identifu, measure and manage

all key risks has been put in place by the Board and integrated into the overall management

reporting structure. These risks are t'urther demarcated onto the Strategic Corporate Risk Matrix
which is closely monitored by the Board. The Audit and Risk Committee of the Board, through

its delegated mandate from the Board. regularly reviews the ef-fectiveness ofthe intemal oontrol
system. The Head of the lntemal Audit Department reports directly to the Board's Audit and

Risk Committee.

During the year under review, ACA continued to embed a risk-awareness culture aimed at

supporting strategic and operational objectives. Key corporate and emerging risks related to

specific strategic objectives were assessed, evaluated and are closely monitored by the Board

and Management. Therefbre, ACA remains commitled to robust risk management practices as

an integral part of good management. The Board, through its Audit and Risk Committee,

exercises an oversight role on the Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) processes implemented

by management.
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The risk management fiamework. allows the Authority to identily. measure. manage and

monitor strategic and opcrational risks across the organisation. The fiamework provides

managcment with a clear Iine olsight over risk to enable inlbrmed decision making.

Key Risks
ACA's key risks and mitigation measures are shown in the tablc below
K Risks and Mit ations

Material errors in statutory or financial obligations
Thcre are no material errors in slalutory or llnancial obligations.
The Authority's financial probity and serious governancc issues
'fhere is no major llnancial probity as repo(ed by intemal audit/Board audit committee. extemal
auditors. or other National Govcmment Agencies providing oversight; and there are no serious
govemancc issues among the lloard or mcmber of'the Board and top managemenl including
conllicl of interest.

No Risk Risk Driver Risk
Rating Mitigation strategies

Inadequate capacity 1o

independently verify IP
violations

Engage IPR owners to
otler certified brand
training to enfbrcement
ofJlcers

Rapid technological
advancements

Flnhance market
surveillance and research

Establish intbrmation
sharing channelsInadequate inter agency

collaboralion and
coordination

Develop and implement
an inter-agency
fiamework

Porous borders
Establish presence at the
bordcr points

I
lnadequacy in
enlbrcement
o1'lPR

Changcs in govemment
policy

Engage the National
Govemment policy
makers

2
Insecurity of
stalT

Insufllcient armed police
ollicers during
enlbrcemenl operations

MOUs with NPS fbr
lacilitation during
operations

Inadequate f-unding
Implement the resource
mobilisation strategies

3
Financial
risks Delay in exchequer

disbursements

Moderate
Ensure timely requests fbr
exchequcr disbursements

4

Discontinuity
of operations
in the event of'
a disasler

lnadequate business
continuity and Disaster
recovery plans

Moderete Establish an olTsite data
site
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The Anti-Counterl'eit Authority (ACA) is dedicatcd to supporting the government's agenda of
translbrming lives and lbstering better livelihoods as a responsible corporatc entity. The current

govcrnment places significant cmphasis on industrial dcvelopment, particularly supporting

Small and Medium linterpriscs (SMLs) and grouing value chains in sectors like agro-

pmcessing, oil & gas. textile. apparel. and leathcr, in linc with Kenya Vision 2030. Afiica
Agenda 2063. and the Unitcd Nations' Sustainable Devclopmcnt Goals (SDGs). ACA's
mandate ol'promoling Intellectual Propcrty aligns with lhe se economic developmenl priorities

and contributcs to poverty allcviation and addressing wcalth disparity.

l. Sustainability Strategy and Profile

ACA recognizes thc crucial role it plays in contributing to broader societal and environmental

well-being beyond its core mission ol'combating counterf'eiting. 'lir this end. ACA has adopted

a robust Sustainability Strategy and Prollle that aligns with the Sustainablc Development Goals

(SI)Gs) set fbrth by the United Nations. particularly those to be achieved by 2030.

rL
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Stonding ot the nliddle, ACA Boord of Dtectot s, Chotnton, Hon. Joeephot Grchutge Mwt obuo Kobeobeo occomponied

the Executive Dlrectot of ACA Dt Robt Nprage Mbuquo i] the recent tree plonting exerc9e tn Mokuent county ond

other lacol leoders.
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At the heart oiACA's commitment to suslainability is its Cor?orate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Policy. 1'his policy serves as a guiding liamework that addresses the fundamental challenges

Iaced by society. aiming to creale a positive impact on the communities it serves. By embracing

the principlcs olthe SDGs, ACA seeks to be a responsible corporate entity that contributes to

the achievement olglobal developmenl targets.

T'he CSR Policy outlines the slrategic approach to fullilling ACA's social and environmental

responsibilities. It recognizes that sustainability eflorts must be integrated into the core

operations of the organization. 'l'herelbrc. the policy ensures that CSR activities are not merely

isolated initiatives bul are seamlessly woven inlo the overall ACA corporate strategy, budget,

and work plans. This integration ensures that sustainability remains a top priority and is
approached with long-term vision and commitment.

In addition to outlining the spccific areas of fbcus fbr ACA's CSR initiatives. the policy plays

a pivotal role in establishing the CSR Committee. This committee is composed of'dedicated
individuals fiom various departments within ACA and is tasked with overseeing the planning.

execution, and evaluation ol'CSR activities. I'he committee acts as a driving force behind the

successful implementation of sustainability initiatives. providing expertise and support to top

management.

ACA's CSR activities span a wide range of areas, addressing various social. economic, and

environmental challenges. Ely incorporating the SDGs into its sustainability approach, ACA
aims to contribute directly to global ellbrts to eradicate poverty. improve health and education.

promote gender equality, and combal climate change. among other objectives.

'Ihrough this comprehensive Sustainability Strategy and Profile. ACA is committed b being. a

stakeholder-responsive corporate entity that places the well-being olcitizens and communities
at the tbrelionl of its operations. By leveraging ils expertise, resources, and partnerships, ACA
strives to make a positive and lasting impact on society while promoting sustainable

development.

As part ol its commitmenl to transparency and accountability, ACA regularly reports on the

progress and outcomes of its CSR activilies. By sharing the results of its sustainability efforts.

ACA seeks to inspire other organizations. government entities. and individuals to take proactive

steps in addressing societal challenges and contributing to a more sustainable future tbr all.

2. Environmental Performance

As the ACA fulfils its mandate, it actively contributes to Kenya's commitmenl to global

development goals. particularly the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs). ACA's dedication

to sustainability is evident through several programs and initiatives aimed at suppo(ing
responsible practices and promoting environmental well-being.

Promoting Industry, Innovation, and Infrastructure (SDG no. 9): ACA's effbrts in

curbing counterl'eiting have a diroct positive impact on industries, investments, and
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innovation. By combating counterfeil producls. ACA fosters an environment thal

encourages genuine investmenls. supports creativity. and promotes the growth ollegitimate
industries. 'fhis aligns closely with SDG no.9, which krcuses on lbstering sustainable

industrialization. innovation. and inliastructure development.

Strengthening Means of Implementation and Global Partnership (SDG Agenda l7):
ACA's coordination mandate with other lntellectual Property Rights entbrcement

organizations demonstratcs the authority's commitment to supporting SDG Agenda 17. By

collaborating with national. regional. and intemational organizations involved in combating

counterl'eiting, ACA contributes to strengthening the means ol implementing sustainable

development initiatives and revitalizing global parlnerships fbr sustainable progress.

Embracing Environmental Sustainabili(v: ACA's commitment to environmental
sustainability is evident through its implementation oi a papcrless board solution and the

ACA Integrated Managenrent System (AIMS). By transitioning to digital solutions lbr core

I'unctions, ACA reduces paper usagc and minimizes its ecological fbotprint, showing a

conscious ef'fort to align with sustainability principles.

Compliance with Climate Action (SDG No. l3): ACA's procurement ol'NEMA certitied

destruction f'acilities showcases the authority's dedicalion to environmental protection and

climate action. These facilities ensure that the disposal ol countert'eit goods adheres to

stringent environmental standards. aligning uith SDG No. 13, which emphasizes taking

urgent aclion to combat climate change and ils impacts.

Supporting Zero Hunger and Good Health (SDGs no.2 and 3): ACA's ellbrts to combat

trade in counterlbits also have positive implications fbr SDGs no. 2 and 3. By addressing

soil quality and promoting resilient agricultural practices. ACA contributes to SDG no. 2's

goal of achieving zero hungcr and enhancing fbod security. Moreover, by fighting
counterleit medicines, ACA aligns with SD(i no. 3's objective ol promoting good health

and well-being fbr all.

3. Employee Welfare

ACA places a strong emphasis on employee welfare and compliance with relevant Kenyan laws

on aflfirmative action. The authority is committed to ensuring a divcrse and inclusive workforce

that values equal opportunities lbr all employees. 'fhe ACA Human Resource Policy plays a

vital role in upholding these principles.

The HR policy encompasses various guidelines to create a supportive and enriching work
environment fbr its employees:

Equal Pay and Diversity: ACA ensures that cqual pay is provided ibr work ofequal value.

promoling laimess and gender cquality in the workplace. The policy embraces diversity by

welcoming individuals liom dillbrent gender identities. abilities. ages, and backgrounds,

lbstering an inclusive cuhure that promotes mutual respcct and understanding. By valuing

diversity, ACA recognizes the richness that a diverse worklbrce brings to the organization.

Recruitment and Employee Welfare: 'fhe HR policy includes comprehensive guidelines

fbr the recruitment process, cnsuring fair and transparent hiring practices. ACA strives to

attract the best talent while nurturing a workplace culture that prioritizes employee well-
being. The authority provides various wellare measures to support its employees. including
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a generous medical cover to ensure access to quality healthcare for themselves and their
lhmilies.
Training, Upskilling, and Development: ACA recognizes the importance of continuous

learning and growlh lbr its employees. The I IR policy emphasizes the importance of
lraining and upskilling programs to enhance employees' prof'essional capabilities. By
investing in the development of its worklbrce. ACA ensures that its employees remain

equipped to tackle new challenges and contribute el'lectively to the authority's mission.

Sanction and Reward Systems: ACA maintains a balanced approach to discipline and

recognition. The llR policy outlines clear sanclion mechanisms tbr instances olmisconduct,
ensuring accountability and adherence to prol'essional standards. Simultaneously. ACA
implements a robust reward system to acknowledge and celebrate employees' achievements.

lbstering a culture of appreciation and motivation.

Disability Management Committee: ACA demonstrales its commitment to promoting a

supportive work environment by establishing a dedicated Disability Management

Committee. T'his committee lbcuses on addressing disability-related matters all'ecting
employees. implementing reasonable accommodations, and Ibstering an inclusive
workspace whcre every employee can thrive.
Safety and Health at the Workplace: Ilmployee safety and health are paramount to ACA's
operations. The authority placcs great importance on compliance with the Occupational

Sal'ety and Health Acl ol'2007 (OSHA). 'l'o ensure a safe and secure work environment.

ACA has a management committee dedicated to oversceing sal'ety practices. identilying
potential hairards, and implementi n8 necessary preventivr.' measures.

Succession Planning: ACA proactively identifies potential talent gaps within thc

organization and addresses them through a well-defined succession planning policy. This
approach ensures that the authority is well-prepared to handle transitions smoothly and

maintain seamless operations during leadership changes. By investing in the development

and progression of its employees. ACA sal'eguards its ability to continue tulfilling its

mandate efl'ectively.

4. Market Place Practices

ACA is committed to upholding responsible competition practices and mainlaining the highest

standards of integrity and cthics in its operations. The authority understands the importance of
combating corruplion and works diligently to address any potential issues in its intemal
processes. Dedicated commiltees are in place to proactively address integrity. ethics, and anti-
conuplion mattcrs. ensuring a culture of transparency and accountability within ACA.

As a public entity. ACA prioritizes political neutralily and adheres to the Public Service code

olconduct. l-his commitment ensurcs that the authority remains impartial in its operations. lree

fiom any political inlluence, and solely lbcused on lulfilling its mandate in combating

counterf'eiting and protecting consum(]rs.

ACA's eflbrts kr combat trade in counterl'eit products go hand in hand with promoting fair trade

praclices and enhancing the easc of doing business in the counlry. By tackling counterf-eiting.

ACA fbsters a level playing lleld fbr genuine businesses, which boosts investor confidence.
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counterl'eit products are kept out olthe markel. ACA helps salbguard consumers' interests and

Ibslers trust in legitimate brands.
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Coption ACA Executive Director Dr. Robi Mbuguo Njorcge signs o MOU with Ahtt-Countedeit Netwotk Aftico o

Ugondon bosed Anti-Counterfeiting odvococy group in Noitobi.

5. Responsible Supply Chain and Supplier Relations

ACA places great emphasis on maintaining a responsible and transparent supply chain. The

authority complies with the Public Procurement and Assct Disposal Act, ensuring that all
procurement processes are conducted with prof'essionalism, laimess, and in accordance with
legal requiremenls. ACA's commitment to transparency and accountability cnsures that value

lbr money is achieved in all procuremcnt activilies. optimizing lhe use of resources to suppo(
its mission elfectively.

To lbster strong and productive relationships, ACA's Supply Chain Management Department

actively engages with its suppliers. Open and lransparent communication is encouraged,

ensuring that suppliers understand ACA's expectations and that the aulhority comprehends their
capabilities and limitations. I hese strong supplier relations lbsler collaboration. elficiency, and

mutual benelits, leading to successful partnerships in achieving ACA's goals.

Moreover. ACA actively supporls govemment directives on Access to Covemment

Procurement Opportunities (AGPO). aiming to empower special groups within society. 'lhe

authority allocates specilic opportunities fbr special groups, providing them with a chance to

parlicipate in govemment procurement activitics. ACA's support fbr AGPO aligns with the
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broader national objective of promoting inclusivity and empowering marginalized

communities, contributing to a more equitable and socially responsible procurement landscape.

6. Responsible Marketing and Advertisement

ACA recognizes the significance of'responsible marketing and communication in lbstering

transparency. trust, and ef'fLctive engagement with the public and stakeholders. To achieve this,

ACA's Public Communication division takes charge ol communication strategies. media

relations, and brand positioning to ensure that the authority's message aligns with its values and

objectives.

Central to ACA's commitment to responsible marketing is the Media and Public

Communicalion Policy. which serves as a guiding tiamework tbr all communication elTorts.

This policy emphasizes the importance ol'maintaining ethical and credible communication
practices while conveying accurate inlbrmation 1o thc public. By adhering to this policy, ACA
ensurcs that its interactions with the public and stakeholders are characterized by integrity,

prof'essionalism. and clarity.

To elfectively reach its audience, ACA leveragcs various online and social media platlbrms,

recognizing their widcspread influencc and accessibility. The revamped ACA website serves

as a reliable and inlbrmative po(al for stakeholders to access relevant updates. reporls, and

resources related to counterlbit prevention and the authority's initiatives. Additionally, the

website acls as a hub lbr timely announcements, press releases, and media coverage to keep the

public inlormed about ongoing activitics.

Social media plalforms. such as [racebook. YouTube. Linkedln. Instagram, and Twitter. are

strategically employed to disseminate targeted messages and engage with diverse audiences.

These platfbrms allow ACA to establish a direct line of communication with the public.

enabling prompt responses to queries and concems while facilitating meaningtul dialogue on

counlerl'eil-related issues.

The rcsponsible use of social media also presents an opportunity ibr ACA to raise consumer

awareness on counterf'eit products. their potential risks. and ways to identify and report

suspicious items. Educational campaigns, intbgraphics, and interactive conlent help promole

consumer empowerment, encouraging individuals to make informed choices and prioritize
genuine products over counterf'eit altematives.

Furlhermore. ACA's responsible marketing initiatives extend beyond the digital realm. The

authority activcly engages with mainstream media and relevant industry publications to ensure

accurate and comprehensive coverage of its activities and the broader fight against

counteri'eiting. Media relations play a vital rolc in disseminating timely and factual inlormation

to lhe public. reinlbrcing the authority's commitmenl to transparency.

As part of responsible marketing and communication, ACA is committed to addressing any

misconceptions or misinlbrmation surrounding countert'eit products and their impact on society.

By ollering credible inlbrmation and insights. ACA strives to fbster an informed public
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discourse that bolsters public confidence in genuine brands and tbsters a collective

understanding ofthe dangers posed by counterf'eils.

7. Product Stewardship

Product stewardship is a critical aspect of ACA's commitment to environmental and social

responsibility. Beyond its core mandate of combating trade in counterf'eit products, ACA places

significant emphasis on leveraging lhe power ol social media and other communication

channels to promote consumer awareness and sal'eguard consumer rights and interests.

In today's interconnected world, the prevalence of counterf'eit products poses signiflcant risks

to consumers. businesses, and the overall economy. Counterf'eit goods often lack the quality

and saf'ety standards required lbr genuine products. leading to potential harm to consumers and

damage to reputable brands. These illicit products can range liom counterf'eit electronics and

pharmaceuticals to lake apparel. cosmctics. and consumer goods.
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Coption ACA Executive Diectot Dt. Robi Mbuguo Njoroge oddressing the porticiponts ot ISIPPE Conlerence

To address this pressing issue, ACA utilizes various platfbrms to disseminate vital inlbrmation

to the pubtic. 'fhrough engaging content. targeted campaigns. and educational materials, the

authority emphasizes the impo(ance ol' identilying and avoiding countertbit products.

Consumers are educated about the potential dangt:rs associated with purchasing such goods and

are empowered to make intbrmed choices while exercising their rights as responsible

consumers.

The ACA's socia[ media eftbrts go beyond merely raising awareness about counterfeil products.

The authority actively encouragcs consumers to report suspected countert'eit items, helping the

ACA identify and address illicit trade more elfectively. -fhis two-way communication fbsters a

collaborative approach. as consumers become active partners in the fight against countert'eiting.
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Mureovcr. A('A collaborates wilh rclevant stakeholdcrs. including industry associalions.
consunlcr protcction groups. and lau enlirrcemcnt agcncics. to anrplili' thc irnpact of thcir
product stewardship initiativcs. I)1' Ibrging slratcgic partncrships. thc authoritl' cxtends its reach

and ensures a rnorc conrprehensive rcsponsc to thc challcngcs poscd by countcrl'citing.
'l hc broader goal ol'AC'A's product ste*ardship cllbrls is to crcatc a culture ol' responsibilitl..
wherc consumcrs arc empowcrcd to nrakc choiccs that contribute to a sali:r marketplace. lly
instilling a scnse ol' r'igilancc antl critical thinking. ACA aims to rcduce the dentand lirr
counterlcit products and. in turn. dinrinish thc economic inccntivos lirr countertciters.
Additionally. b1 promoting consumer a\\arcness and rcsponsiblc consumption. ACA's product
stcwardship approach contributcs to sustainablc dcvclopmenl. A markctplacc that prioritizcs
gcnuinc. sal'c. and cthicalll produced products lirstcrs a conducive cn\,ironnlent lbr legitintate
businesscs to thrivc.
'l his. in turn. supports thc groulh ol'small and ntcdiunt cnterprises (SMt:s). strcngthcns t,alue

chains. and contrihules lo overall econornic dcvclopmcnl in line uith thc national and global
suslainable dcvekrpnrent agendas.

ll. Corporate Social Rcsponsibilitl / Communitv Engagcments

A('A's comrritnlcnt to corporate social responsibility (('SR) goes heyond i1s core mandatc of
combating counterle'iting. 'l hc authoritl' rccognizcs its rcsponsibilitl to dclivcr public sen ice

and active ly cngages with the crlrnmunilies uhere it operatcs- s(riving to crcrtc a positivc impact
on socicty and contributc to thc ucll-bcing ol'its stakeholders.
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As part ol' its ('SR initiatives. ACA parlicipalcd in thc National Irec (irowing Campaign.

collaborating uith thc llco (irccn Initiatirc (ll(il). In a signilicant cndcavor. ACA and ll(il
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L joined forces to plant over two thousand trees al Muuni hill in Makueni County. This tree-

planting initiative aimed to address critical environmental concems and fbster sustainable

forestry practices. By planting trees, ACA and FlGl sought to preserve water lables, control

erosion, and enhance the environment's overall ecological balance.

The link between the environment and the well-being olcommunities was a cenlral theme ol
this tree-planting elfort. ACA recognized the pivotal role that a healthy environment plays in

improving the quality ol litb. supporting public health. boosting the local economy, and

enhancing crop yields fbr agricultural sustainability. Through this initiative, ACA demonstrated

its commitment to environmental stewardship and its recognition of the interdependence

between environmental health and socielal prosperity.

In addition to its environmental initiatives, ACA actively suppo(s the youth in Kenya through

its commitment to youth internships. industrial attachments. and apprenticeships. By offering
opportunities fbr deserving Kenyan youths to gain practical experience and prepare tbr thejob
market, ACA contributes to youth empowerment and the development of a skilled workforce.

These initiatives not only nurture young talent but also tbsler a sense ol hope and optimism

among the youth, inspiring them to play a meaningful role in shaping the country's future.

Furthermore, ACA collaborates with key partners like the Kenya Administration Police Unit to

turther its CSR objectives. Recognizing the critical role that the police unit plays in providing

security to ACA premises and offices across the country. ACA demonstrated its appreciation

by collaborating in the construction of a Waiting Bay/Gazebo at their Uhuru Camp

Commandant's Ofllce in Nairobi. This collaboration exemplifies ACA's commitment to

building strong and mutually benelicial relationships with stakeholders who support its mission

and operations.

Through these community engagements and CSR initiatives. ACA seeks to be a responsible

and proactive corporate entity that contributes to the well-being ol society. By addressing

environmental challenges, empowering the youth. and collaborating with strategic partners.

ACA actively parlicipates in ello(s 10 create a sustainable and prosperous future lbr all.

Conclusion
The Anti-Counterf'eit Authority is committed to environmenlal and sustainability efforts.

aligning with national and global development priorities. Through its policies, initiatives, and

collaborations, ACA aims to tbster economic growlh, promote tair trade practices, and engage

with stakeholders and communities to crcate a positive impact on society.
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XI. REPORTOF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors suhmit their rcport together with the Iinancial statements lbr the year ended Junc

30.2023. which show the state oflhe Authoritv's allairs.

i) Principalactivities

The principal activities ol the Authority continue to be to enlighten and infbrm the public on
matters relating lo counterl'e iting: Combat counterleiting. trade and othcr dealings in counterf'eit
goods in Kenyal [)evise and promote training programs on combaling counterf'eiting; Co-
ordinate with national, regional or intemational organizations involved in combating
counterl'cilingl Advise the govemment through the Cabinet Secretary on policies and measurcs
concerning the necessary support. promotion and protection of'intellectual property rights as
well as the extenl of counterl'eitingl and carry out inquiries, studies and research into matters
relaling to counlerf'citing and the protection of intellectual property rights.

ii) Results

The results ofthc Authority lirr the year ended June 30,2023 are set out on page I

i ii) Directors

The mcmbers olthe Board ol'Directors who served during thc year are shown liom pages vii
to xii.

iv) Surplus remission

ln accordance with Regulation 219(2) ol thc Public Financial Management (National
Govemment) Regulations, regulatory cntities shall remit in to Consolidated Fund. ninety per
cenlum ol its surplus Iunds reported in the audited flnancial stalements afler the end of each
flnancial year. 'fhe Authority is not classifled as a regulatory authority and therefbre did not
remit surplus lunds to the Consolidated [.und.

v) Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible lor lhe statutory audit ofthe Authority in accordance wilh
Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya. 2010 and the Public n udit Act,20l5.

By Ordcr of the Board

Dr. Robi Mbugua Njoroge
Executive Director

Date: 3 I .08.23
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XII. STATEMENTOFDIRECTORS'RESPONSIBILITIES

Section 8l ofthe Public Finance Management Act, 2012, section l4 ofthe State Corporations

Act and Section 20(2) of the Anti- Counterfeit Act, 2008 require the Directors to prepare

financial statements in respect of the Authority, which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs ofthe Authority at the end ofthe financial year and the operating results ofthe Authority
for that year. The Directors are also required to ensure that the Authority keeps proper

accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the

Authority. The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets ofthe Authority.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Authority's financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Authority for and as at

the end of the financial year ended on June 30, 2023. This responsibility includes: (i)
maintaining adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to

be effective throughout the reporting period; (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which

disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Authority; (iii)
designing, implementing and maintaining intemal controls relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they are free from material

misstatements, whether due to error or fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the Authority; (v)

selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and (vi) making accounting estimates

thal are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Directors accept responsibility for the Authority's financial statements, which have been

prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements

and estimates, in conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS),

and in the manner required by the PFM Act,20l2 and the Anti-Counterfeit Act 2008. The

Directors are of the opinion that the Authority's financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of Authority's transactions during the financial year ended June 30, 2023 and of the

Authority's financial position as at that date. The Directors further confirm the completeness of
the accounting records maintained lor the Authority, which have been relied upon in the

preparation of the Authority's financial statements as well as the adequacy of the systems of
intemal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention olthe Directors to indicate that the Authority will not remarn

a going concem for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

Approval of the financial statements

The Authority's financial statements were approved by the Board on 25th August, 2023 and signed
on its behalfby:

\_

Signature:. . .

Name: Hon. Josphat Gichunge Mwirabua Kabeabea
Chairperson of the Board

lvlPage

Signature:.........
Name: Dr. Robi Mbugua Njoroge
fl,xecutive Director
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL

E n ha nt i n g A ct'oun t o h i I i t.t

HEADqUARTERS

Anniversary Towers
Monrovia Street

P.O. Box loo84-oor oo
NAIROBI

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON ANTICOUNTERFE]T AUTHORITY FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resourecs are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure the Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on the Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, risk
management environment and internal controls, developed and implemented by those
charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations, and that its intemal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Acl, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 201 5. The three parts of
the report when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Anti-Counterfeit Authority set
out on pages 1 to 36, which comprise of the statement of flnancial position as at
30 June, 2023, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net
assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual

Report ofthe Auditor-Generql on Anti-Counterfeit Authorityfor the year ended 30 June, 2023



amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information in accordance with the provisirrns of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all
the information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Anti-Counterfeit Authority as at 30 June,2023, and its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with lnternational Public Sector
Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with the Anti-Counterfeit Act, 2008 and
the Public Finance Management Acl,2012.

Basis for Opinion

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Anti-Counterfeit Authority Management in
accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical requirements
applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe that the audit
evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Contingent Liability

As disclosed in Note 23 to the financial statements, there were pending legal proceedings
against the Authority that may, if successful, have significant impac{ on its operations.
These includes nine (9) civil cases with a contingent liability of Kshs.98,624,784 which
had adverse rulings but the Authority appealed against the ruling. Further and as
previously reported, there was also a case where an accused was charged with
possession of counterfeit electric bulbs and accessories but was acquitted of the charges
in a Court of Law in 201 5. However, the accused person and others instituted a civil case
at Milimani Law Courts in 2016 seeking for special damages of Kshs.603,500,000 against
the Authority for unlawful arrest, malicious prosecution and destruction of property.
Although, the Authority released part of the goods seized to the accused persons in July,
2015, they complained that the remaining goods had been destroyed and they could not
take destroyed or damaged goods.

ln the circumstances, the financial effect of the outcomes of the pending legal
proceedings against the Authority could not be determined.

My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Reporl o/the Auditor-(ieneral on Anti-Counte*il Authorityfor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Matters

ln the audit report of the previous year, several issues were raised. However, the
Management did not resolve the issues or give any explanation for failure to resolve the
issues.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) ot the Constitution and based on the audit procedures
performed, I confirm that nothing has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
public resources have not been applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The Standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, flnancial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements comply in all material respects, with the authorities that govern them.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK
MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
report, I confirm that nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
internal controls, risk management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

Understaffing

The approved establishment of the Authority provides for two hundred and fifty (250) staff
members. However, only one hundred and seventeen (117) representing 47% of the
approved establishment were in-post resulting in a shortfall of one hundred and
thirty{hree (133) staff members across the various staffing cadres as at 30 June, 2023.

ln the circumstances, the understaffing may hinder effective delivery of services by the
Authority.

The audit was conducted in accordaner with ISSAI 2315 and 2330. The Standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assuranee about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk Management and overall governance
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were operating effectively in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Authority's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Authority or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Directors
process, reviewing the
relevant legislative and
systems are in place to
and risk management,
environment.

is responsible for overseeing the Authority's financial reporting
effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Arlicle 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always
detect a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,

Reporl of the Audilor-Generql on Anli-Counte*it Authority for the year ended 30 June, 202 3
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financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the PublicAuditAct, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the lnternal Controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

a

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Authority's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf lconclude that a material uncertainty
exists, I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my
opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
my audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Authority to
cease to continue to sustain its services.

Report ofthe Auditor-Generol on Anti-Counterfeit Authoritylor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial staternents represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Authority to express an opinion on the financial statements.

o Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA a u cBs
AUDITOR.GENERAL

Nairobi

06 March, 2024

Report ofthe Auditor-Aenerql on Anti-Counrerfeit Authoritylor lhe yeor ended 30 June, 2023
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ANTI.COUNTERFEIT AUTHORITY (ACAJ

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED IUNE 30, 2023

L xrv. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PE RFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30.IUNE,2023

Note

Revenue from non-exchangc transactions
-Iransfer from SDT&ED

Revenue from exchange transactions
Rendering of services

Other income
l'otal Revenue liom exchangc transactions

Total revenue

Expenses

Use of goods and services

Employee costs

Remuneration of Directors
Depreciation and amortization expense

Repairs and mainlenance
Total expenses

Other gains
Gain on loreign exchangc transaclions
Surplus/Deficit for the period

+

6(a) 349.999.999 340.500.000

349,999,999 3.t0,500,000

9(a)

l0(a)
ll
t2
l3

2022-2023
Kshs

7 56.642,812
8 74.574

56.717.386

.106,717,385

l s4.l 88.236
247.842.468

t4.742.086
25.634.562
4.953.273

447,360,625

2021-2022
Kshs

14.075.396
19.499

14.094.895

354,594,895

r 10,95 l,334
228,504,210

9.806.480

I I,642,570
3.573.862

364,478,,456

27.630
(9,8ss,e31)(40,643,240)

The notes set out on pages 6 to 40 tbrm an integral part o['these l'inancial Statements.

The Financial Statements set out on pages I to 5 wcre signed on behalfofthe Board of Directors by:

_l

I-t

t

Executive Director
Dr. Robi Mbugua Njoroge

Date : 31.08.23

Hcad ol' liinancc
Ms. Purity Munyiri
ICPAK No: 1U490

I)atc: I I .08.211

Chairperson ol the Lloard
I Ion. Josephat Gichunge
Mwirabua Kabeabea

I)ate: 3 I .08.23
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JANTI-COUNTERFEIT AUTHORITY (ACA)
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

xv. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2023

Note 2022-2023
Kshs

325.787.696
8.291.351

12.500.000
4.34s.774

3s0,921,821

119.175.886
t 19,175,886
170, t 00,707

2021-2022
Kshs

443.405.859
6.959.857

3.123.s60
153,189,276

5.167 .407
5,167,107

458,656,681

Assets
Currcnt assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Current portion of rcceivables liom cxchange
transactions
Rcceir ahles liom non-crchange transacli()ns
Inventories

Non-current assets
Property. plant and equipnrent

Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities
'l'rade and other pa1'ables

Current Provisions
Total Iiahilities

Net assets

Rcserves (icneralreserve

- Dcvelopmenl Fund

- Revaluation

Accumulated surplus

Total Net assets

t4
l5

l6
t7

l8

l9
20

1.079.898
4.446.561
5,526,.t59

191.872.996

36.502.000

69.429.13 I

166.770.120

161,571,248

6.594.836
368.863

6,963,699

l r5.874.996
| 12.500.000

15.904.628

207.413.360
.l5l,692,984

Total net assets and liabilities {70,100,707 {58,656,684

The Financial Statements set out on pages I to 5 were signed on behall'ofthe Board oi Directors by:

_l

i_.,1'f ,+-

t

Executivc Direclor
Dr. Robi Mbugua N.joroge

Date : 31.08.23

I lcad o1' I;inance
Ms. Purity Munyiri
ICI'AK No: ltt490
Date: 31.08.23

Chairpcrson ol' the Board
I Ion.Josphat Gichunge
Mwirabua Kabeabea
I)ate: 31.08.23

2ll'agc



ANTI.COUNTERFEIT AUTHORITY (ACA)
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

xvl.

July l,2021

Surplus fbr the period

| ::preciation

L. rvelopment Grants
received during the

l1r
At June 30,2022
At July 1,2022

ProfiUloss for the
period

Revaluation
At June 30,2023

Note:

General
reserve
Kshs

I 15,874,996
115,874,996

191,812,996

Development
Fund

Kshs

Revaluation
Reserve
Kshs

Accumulated
surplus

Kshs

Total

451,692,984
451,692,984

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Kshs

115,874,996 112,500,000 15,904,628 217,269,291 461,548,915

(9.855,931) (9,85s.931)

l r2,s00,000
I12,500,000

15,904,628
15,904,628

207,4r3J60
207,413360

7s,998,000 (75,998,000) (40,643,240) (40,643240)

166,770,120 464,574,248
- s3,s24,s03

36,502,000 69,429,131

l. The development fund is fbr acquisition ol depots to be used for storage of seized suspected
counterfeit-goods. This was utilised to procure two go-downs in Nairobi at a cost of 75.9M
during the year ended 30th June 2023.

2. The Authority's assets were revalued during the year ended 30rh June 2023 leading to change
in revaluation reserve by 53.5M.
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ANTI-COUNTERFEIT AUTHORITY (ACA]
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

XVII. STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
FOR THE YE,AR ENDE,D 30.IUNE 2023

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Covemment grants and subsid ies

Rendering of services

Foreign exchange gain

Total Receipts
Payments
Use of goods and services

Employee costs

Remuneration of Directors
Repairs and maintenance
Total Payments
Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Development grant

Purchase of property. plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Decrease/ increase in non-current receivables
Net cash flows used in investing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at I JULY
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 JUNE

(86,118,538)

(117,618,163) 14,012,034

Note

6(b)

2022-2023
Kshs

349.999.999
56.717 .386

406,717,385

( l 26,867,899)
(291,6s3,7 52)

(14.742,086)
(4,953,273)

(438,217,010)
(3 t,499,62s)

2021-2022
Kshs

360.500.000
14.075.396

27.630
374,603,026

(112,348,467)
(234,862,184)

(e,806,480)
(3,s73.862)

(360,590,993)

14,012,034

7

e(b)
l0
lt
l3

t4
t4

325.787,696
443,405,859

443.405.859
429,393,825
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ANTI-NOUNTERFEIT AIITHORITY TA'A)
ANrr ual Rrru(T arr u FINanulAL r r aTEu nrr fS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

f
:VIII. STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 202.3

Original budget Adjustments Final budget

Revenuc
Govemment grants - Recurrent
Rendering of services

Rolled ovcr funds

Other lncome
Foreign exchange gain

Total income
Expenses

Compensation of employees

Remuneralion of Directors
Repairs and maintenance

[-lse of' Goods and scn iccs

Depreciation
Total expenditure
Surplus for the period
Capital Expenditure

Kshs
340.000.000
20.000.000
87.500.000

255.432.140
16.500.000

6.500.000
153.067.860

16.000.000

4{7,500,000

Kshs
10.000.000

Kshs
150.000.000
20.000.000

242.000.000

Actual on
comparable
basis

Kshs
349.999.999

56.642.8t2
212.000.000

74.574

247.842.468
14.7.12.086

1.953.273
I 54.1 88.236
25.631.562

147,360,625
(201,356,760)

86,118,538

Performance
difference

Kshs

Percent
Ngeo/o of
utilizati
on

154.500.000

417,500,000 I6{,500,000 612,000,000 6{8,717,385 (-16,717,385)

I

(36.642.812)

0
(7 4.57 4\

4.989.672
1.757.911
1.546.727

| 1.479.621

100%
283o/c'

98o/o

tl9o/o

76%
93%

s60/"

11,600.000

10,000,000 19,773,937

201,500,000 50,000,000 68J81,{62

Notes to explain the variance:
l. Repairs and Maintenance - The underachievement in repairs and maintenance was due to reduced breakdown ofvehicles.
2. Two Go-downs were acquired in Nairobi Region at 75.9M creating savings againsl the allocated budget.

+ Revenue from other income and foreign exchange gain are not budgeted for.

(2.600.000) 252.832.140
r 6.500.000
6.500.000

r65.667.860
16.000.000

{57,500,000
t 51,500,000
151,500,000
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J
ANTI-COUNTERFEIT AUTHORITY (ACA)
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED IUNE 30,2023

xIx NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General Information

Anti-Countertbit Authority was established under Section 3 of the Anti-Counterfeit Act No. I 3 of
2008 as a corporate body under the State Corporations Act. Chapter 446 ot'the Laws of Kenya,

and derives its authorily and accountability from this Act. The Authority is wholly owned by the

Govemment of Kenya and is domiciled in Kenya.

The Authority's principal activity is to enlighten and inform thc public on matters relating to

counterfeiling; combat countert'eiting. trade and other dealings in counterleit goods in Kenya:

devise and promote training programs on combating counterfeiting; co-ordinate with national,

regional or internalional organizations involved in combating counterfeiting; Advise the

govemment through the Cabinel Secretary on policies and measures conceming the necessary

support. promotion and protection of intellectual pmperty rights as well as the extent of
counterf'eiting; and carry oul inquiries. studies and research into matters relating to counterl'eiting

and the protection of intellectual property rights.

2. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

The Authority's tlnancial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except fbr the

measurement of revalued amounts ol cenain property, planl and equipment at fair value. The

preparation ofthe financial stalements in conlbrmity with International Public Sector Accounting

Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimales and assumptions. lt also requires management to

exercise judgement in lhe process of applying the Aulhority's accounting policies. The areas

involving a higher degree ofjudgement or complexity, or rvhere assumptions and estimates are

significant to the financial statements. are disclosed in Note 5 ofthese financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared and are presented in Kenya shillings, which is the

functional and reporting currency ofthe Authority.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act,2012. the State

Corporations Acl, 2012, the Anti-Counterl'eit Act. 2008 and Accrual Basis ol'Accounling Method

under lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The Accounting policies

adopted have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

6ll'agc



ANTI.COUNTERFEIT AUTHORITY (ACA)
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED IUNE 30,2023

3. Adoption of New and Revised Standards
i, New and amended standards and interpretalions in issue elleclive in lhe lear ended 30 June

2023.

IPSAS

Financial

Instruments

4ll Applicable: l'r January 2023:

The objective of IPSAS 4l is to establish principles for the

financial reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will

present relevanl and useful infbrmation to users of financial

statements tbr their assessment of the amounts, timing and

uncertainty ofan Entity's future cash flows.

IPSAS 4l provides users offinancial statements with more useful

information than IPSAS 29, by:

. Applying a single classitication and measurement model

for financial assets that considers the characteristics of

the asset's cash flows and the objective for which the

asset is held:

. Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss

model that is applicable to all tinancial instruments

subject to impairment testing; and

Applying an improved hedge accounting model that

broadens the hedging arrangements in scope of the

guidance. The model develops a strong link between an

Entity's risk managemenl strategies and the accounting

treatment for instruments held as part of the risk

management strategy.

IPSAS 42: Social

Benefits

Applicable: l"r January 2023

The objective ofthis Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful

representativeness and comparability of the information that a

reporting Entity provides in its financial statements about social

benefits. The information provided should help users of the

financial stalements and general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the Entity.

TlPagc



ANTI-COUNTERFEIT AUTHORITY (ACA)
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

(b) The key l'eatures of the operation of those social benefit

schemes: and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's

tinancial performance. financial position and cash flows.

Amendments to

Other IPSAS

resulting liom

IPSAS 4I.

F inanc ial

lnstruments

Other

improvements to

IPSAS

Applicable: lst January 2023:

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5. to update the guidance related to

the components of borrowing costs which were

inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30. regarding illustrative examples

on hedging and credit risk which were inadverlently

omilted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

c) Amendments to II'SAS 30, to update the guidance for

accounting fbr tlnancial guaranteed contracts which wcre

inadvertently omitled when IPSAS 4l was issued.

d) Amendmenls to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on

classilying financial inslruments on initial adoption of

accrual basis IPSAS which were inadvertently omitted

when IPSAS 4l was issued.

Applicabla I't Janua4' 2023

o IPSAS 22 Di.yclosurL ol Financiul ln/itrmation aboul the

Generul Governnt?nt Scclor. Amendments to refer to the latest

System ofNational Accounts (SNA 2008).

o IPSAS 39; Enploltee Barelitr. Now deletes the term composite

social security benellts as it is no longer defined in IPSAS.

o IPSAS 29: Financial instruments: Recognition and

Measurement. Standard no longer included in the 2OZ3

IPSAS handbook as it is now superseded by IPSAS 4l which

is applicable tiom l"r January 2023.
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t ANTI-COUNTERFEIT AUTHORITY (ACA)
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

,r-

ll1.

4. Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies
r) Revenue recognition

i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Fees, taxes and fines

The Authority recognizes revenues from fees, taxes and fines when the event occurs and the asset

recognition criteria are met. To the extent that there is a related condition attached that would give
rise to a liability to repay the amount, deferred income is recognized instead of revenue. Other
non-exchange revenues are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits or

New and amended slandards and inletprelalions in issue hul not ),el efleclive in lhe yeor ended

30 June 2023.

Early adoption of standards

The Authority did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in the financial yeat 2022/2023.

IPSAS 43 Applicable ln January 2025

The standard sets out the principles fbr the recognition, measurement,

presentation, and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that

lessees and lessors provide relevant information in a manner that laithfully

represents those transactions. This information gives a basis for users of

financial statements to assess the effect that leases have on the financial

position, financial performance and cashflows ofan Entity.

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present

information on right ofuse assets and lease liabilities.

IPSAS 44:

Non- Current

Assets Held

for Sale and

Discontinued

Operations

Applicable ld January 2025

The Standard requires,

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be measured

at the lower of carrying amount and lair value less costs to sell and the

depreciation of such assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be presented

separately in the statement of financial position and the results of

discontinued operations to be presented separately in the statement of

financial performance.
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service potential associated with the asset will flow to the Authority and the fair value ofthe asset
can be measured reliably.'l'he Authority did not receive any income from fees, laxes and llnes.

Transfers from other government entities
Revenues from non-exchange lransaclions with other government entities are measured at fair
value and recognized on obtaining control ofthe asset (cash. goods. services and property) if the
transfer is free from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential
related to the asset will flow lo the Authority and can be measured reliably. Recunent grants are
recognized in the statement ofcomprehensive income. Development/capital grants are recognized
in the statement offlnancial position and realized in the stalement ofcomprehensive income over
the useful life ofthe assets that has been acquired using such funds.

ii) Revenue from exchange transactions - IPSAS 9

Rendering of services
1'he Authority recognizcs revenue from rendering of services by reference to the stage of
completion when the outcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably. The stage of
completion is measured by rel-erence to labour hours incuned to date as a percentage of total
estimaled labour hours.

Where the contract outcomc cannol be measured reliably. revenue is recognized only to the extent
that the expenses incurred are recoverable. The Authority did not receive any income from
rendering of services.

Sale ofgoods
Revenue from the sale ofgoods is recognized when the signiticant risks and rewards ofownership
have been translbrred to the buyer. usually on delivery of the goods and when the amount of
revenue can be measured rcliably and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential

associated with the lransaction will flow Io the entity.'fhe Authority did not receive any income

liom sale ofgoods.

Interest income
Interest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts

estimated future cash receipts through the expected lil'e ol'the financial asset to that asset's net

carrying amount.'l'he rnethod applies this yield lo lhe principal outstanding to determine interest

income each period. The Authority did not receive any interest income.

Dividends
Dividends or similar distributions are recognized when the Authority's right to receive payments

is established. The Authoritv did not receive anv dividends.

Rental income
Rental income arising from operating leases on investmenl properties is accounled for on a

straight-line basis over lhe lease terms and included in revenue. The Authority did not receive any

rental income.
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b) Budget information - IPSAS 24

The original budget tbr FY 2022-2023 was approved by the National Assembly on 7th April2022.
Subsequent revisions/reallocations were made lo the approved budget in accordance with arising

needs of the Authority. The additional appropriations were added to the original budget by the

Authority upon receiving the respective approvals in order to conclude the final budget.

Accordingly, the Authority recorded additional appropriations of'Kshs. 10,000,000 on the 2022-

2023 budget following the board's approval.

The Authority's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure

disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis using

a classification based on the nature ofexpenses in the statement ofllnancial performance, whereas

the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the financial statements were recast tiom
the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified b)'presentation to be on the same basis as lhe

approved budget. A comparison ofbudget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to

the approved budget. is then presented in the statement ol comparison of budget and actual

amounls.

In addition to the Basis dilference, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements are also

made for diflerences in the lbrmats and classilication schemes adopted lbr the presentation ofthe
financial statements and the approved budget.

A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement ol
comparison of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the statement of financial

pertbrmance has been presented under section xvii of'these financial statements.

c) Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities lbr the current period are measured at the amount

expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used

to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in

the area where the Authority operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in net assets is recognized in net assets

and not in the statement of tinancial perfbrmance. Management periodically evaluates positions

Iaken in the tax returns with respect to silualions in which applicable tax regulations are subject

to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Delbrred tax is provided using the liability method on lemporary diftbrences between the tax bases

ofassets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for tlnancial reporting purposes at the reporting

date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized tbr all taxable lemporary diflerences, except in respect of
taxable temporary dillerences associated with investments in controlled entities, associates and

Illl'ar:e
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.

interests in joint venlures. when the timing of the reversal of the lemporary differences can be

controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

futu re.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary difTerences. the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that

it is probable thal taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences, and the carry lirrward ofunused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized,
excepl in respect of deductible temporary dillerences associated with investments in controlled

entities, associates and inlerests in joinl ventures. defbrred tax assets are recognized only to the

extent that it is probable that the temporary dillerences will reverse in the loreseeable future and

taxable prolit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is rcviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the

extent that il is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred lax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized detbrred tax assets are re-assessed at

each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
prolits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Delened tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the

ycar when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have

been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting dale.

Def'erred tax relating to items recognized outside surplus or deficit is recognized outside surplus

or deficit. Delbrred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction in net

assets-

Def'erred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set

offcurrent tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the delerred taxes relale lo the same

taxable Authority and the same taxation authority.

Sales tax

Expenses and assets are recognized net ofthe amount ol'sales tax. except:

When the sales tax incurred on a purchase ofassets or services is nol recoverable from the taxation

authority. in which case. the sales tax is recognized as pan of the cost of acquisition of the asset

or as part ofthe expense item. as applicable

When receivables and payables are stated with the amount ofsales tax included. The net amount

ofsales tax recoverable from. or payable to. lhe taxation authority is included as part ofreceivables
or payables in the statement ol tinancial position.

Investment Property
Investment properties are measured initially at cost. including transaction costs. The carrying
amount includes the replacement cost of components of an existing investment property at the

Iime that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are mel and excludes the costs ofday-to-day
maintenance of an investment property.

d)

uLlc2
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lnvestment property acquired lhrough a non-exchange transaction is measured at its fair value al

the date of acquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment propenies are measurcd

using the cost model and are depreciated over a 30-year period.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when the

investment property is permanently withdrawn liom use and no future economic benellt or service

potential is expected f'rom its disposal. The dilterence between the net disposal proceeds and the

carrying amount ofthe asset is recognized in the surplus or deficit in the period ofde-recognition.

Transfers are made to or from investment propeny only when there is a change in use.

e) Property, plant and equipment - IPSAS l6

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cosl less accumulated depreciation and impairment

losses. Cosl includes expenditure lhat is directly aftribulable to the acquisition ofthe items. When

significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals. the

Authority recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific usel'ul lives and depreciates

Ihem accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the

carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are

satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in surplus or deficit as incurred.

Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil or nominal consideration lhe

asset is initially measured at its tair value. lt is the policy of the Authority to charge tull
depreciation on all its non-currenl assets in the year of purchase and no depreciation in the year

of disposal.

The Authority applies the following depreciation rates for the different classes of assets:

o Motor vehicle :25Yo

o Land and Buildings : l0o/o

o General Equipment :12.5o/o

o Furniture and Fittings : 12.5o/o

. Computers : 33 I l3Vo

f) Leases - IPSAS l3
Finance leases are leases that transfer substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to

ownership olthe leased item to lhe Authority. Assets held under a finance lease are capitalized at

the commencement oflhe lease al lhe fhir value ofthe leased property or, if lower, at the present

value ofthe future minimum lease payments.'lhe Authority also recognizes the associated lease

liability at the inception ofthe lease. The liability recognized is measured as the present value of
the future minimum lease payments at initial recognition.

Subsequent to initial recognition, lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and

reduction ofthe lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate ofinterest on the remaining balance

ofthe Iiability. Finance charges are recognized as finance cosls in surplus or delicit.

An asset held under a finance lease is depreciated over the useful lil'e ofthe asset. However, if
there is no reasonable certainty that the Authority will obtain orvnership ofthe asset by the end of
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the lease term. the asset is depreciated over the shorter ofthe estimated useful life of the asset and

the lease term.

Operating leases are leases that do not transler substantially all the risks and benefits incidental
to ownership ofthe leased item to the Authority. Operating lease payments are recognized as an

operating expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Authority depreciales leasehold improvemenls al a rate ol 16-70 .

g) lntangible assets-IPSAS 3l

lntangiblc assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible assets

acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their lhir value at the date ofthe exchange. Following
initial recognition. intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and

accumulated impairment losses. lnternally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized
development costs. are not capitalized and expenditure is retlected in surplus or deficit in the
period in which the expenditure is incurred.

'fhe usel'ul lit-e ofthe intangible assets is assessed as either tlnile or indetlnite.

The Authority depreciates intangible assets at a rate of 33 ll3o/o.

h) Research and development costs

The Authority expenses research costs as incurred. Development costs on an individual project
are recognized as intangible assets when the Entity can demonstrate:

i. The tcchnical feasibility of completing the asset so that the asset will be available for use or
sale

Its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset

How the asset will generate future economic benefils or service potential

The avarlability ofresources to complete lhe asset

The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during developmenl.

F'ollowing initial recognition of an asset, the assel is carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization ol the assel begins when
development is complcte and the asset is available for use. lt is amorlized over the period of
expected t'uture benelit. During the period ol'development, the assel is tested for impairment
annually with any impairment losses recognized irnmediately in surplus or deficit. During the
period the Authority did not incur any development costs.

i) Financial instruments - IPSAS 4l
IPSAS 4l addresses the classification. measurement and de-recognition of financial assets and

tinancial liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment model for

financial assets. The Authority does not have any hedge relationships and Iherefore the new hedge

.

iii.

iv.
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accounting rules have no impact on the Authority's financial statements. A linancial instrument

is any contract that gives rise to a Ilnancial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity

instrumenl of another entity. At initial recognition, the entity measures a financial asset or

financial liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case ofa tlnancial asset or financial Iiability

not at fair value through surplus or deficit, transaction costs that are directly attributable Io the

acquisition or issue ofthe financial asset or financial liability.

a) Financial assets

Classification of financial assets

The entity classifies its llnancial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost. Ihir value

through nel assets/ equity or fair value through surplus and deficit on the basis of both the entity's

management model for tlnancial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the

financial asset. A financial asset is measured at amortized cost when the financial asset is held

within a management model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows and the contractual terms ofthe tlnancial asset give rise on specilied dates

lo cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on lhe principal outstanding. A

financial assel is measured at fbir value through net assets/ equity il'it is held within the

management model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cashflows and

selling financial assets and the contractual terms oflhe financial asset give rise on specitied dates

to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding. A flnancial asset shall be measured at fhir value through surplus or deficil unless it

is measured at amortized cost or lhir value through nel assets/ equity unless an entity has made

irrevocable election at initial recognition for particular inveslments in equity instruments.

Subsequent measurement

Based on lhe business model and the cash llow characteristics, the entity classifies its financial

assels into amortized cost or tlir value categories for financial instruments. Movements in fair

value are presenled in either surplus or dellcit or through net assets/ equity subject to certain

criteria being met.

Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows

represent solely payments of principal and intcrest. and that are not designaled at lair value

through surplus or deficit, are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on an instrument that is
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subsequenlly measured at amortized cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognized

in profit or loss when the asset is de-recognized or impaired. Interest income liom these financial

assets is included in llnance income using the eft'ective interest rate method.

Fair value through net assets/ equity

F'inancial assets that are held tbr collection ofcontraclual cash tlows and for selling the financial

assels. where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are

measured at fair value through net assets/ equity. Movements in the carrying amount are taken

through net assets. except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and

foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in surplus/deficit. Interest income liom

these llnancial assets is included in linance income using the elTective interest rate method.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized at fbir values less allowances for any uncollectible

amounts. 'l'rade and other receivables are assessed fbr impairment on a continuing basis. An

estimate is made of doubtf'ul receivables based on a review ofall oulstanding amounts at the year

end.

Fair value through surplus or deficit

Financial assels that do not meel lhe criteria lor amortized cost or t'air value through net assels/

equity are measured at fair value through surplus or delicit. A business model where the Authority

manaBes financial assets with the objective ol'realizing cash flows through solely the sale ofthe

assets would result in a f'air value through surplus or deficit model.

b) Financial liabilities

Classification

The entity classilles its liabilities as subsequenlly measured at amortized cost excepl for financial

liabilities measured through profit or loss.

j) Inventories - IPSAS l2

lnventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition.'Io the exlenl thal inventory was received

through non-exchange transactions (lbr no cost or tbr a nominal cost). the cost ofthe inventory is
its fhir value at the date o['acquisition.
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Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for.

as follows:

Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method

Finished goods and work in progrcss: cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity. but excluding borrowing
costs

.

After initial recognition. inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

However, to lhe extent that a class of'invcnlory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a
nominal charge, that class ol' inventory is measured at the lower of cost and current replacemenl

cosl.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less the

estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange. or

distribution.

lnventories are recognizcd as an expense when deployed lbr utilization or consumption in the

ordinary course of operations of the Authority.

k) Provisions - IPSAS l9
Provisions are recognized when the Authority has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a

result ofa past event, it is probable that an oulflow ofresources embodying economic benefits or
service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation. Where the Authority expects some or all of a provision to be

reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a

separate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any

provision is presented in the statement ol'flnancial performance nel ofany reimbursement.

l) Social Benefits
Social benefits are cash transl'ers provided to i) specilic individuals and / or households that meet

the eligibility criteria, ii) mitigate the ellects ofsocial risks and iii) Address the need ofsociety as

a whole. The entity recognises a social benetlt as an expense lbr the social benefit scheme at the

same time that it recognises a liability. 'l-he liability lor the social benefit scheme is measured al

Ihe best eslimate ofthe cost (the social benelit payments) that lhe entity will incur in fulfilling the

present obligations represented by the liability.

m) Contingentliabilities

The Authority does not recognize a contingent liability. but discloses details of a possible

obligation whose existence is contingenl on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more

uncerlain future events not wholly within the control ofthe Authority in the notes to the financial

statements, unless the possibility ofan outtlow of resources embodying economic benefits or
service potential is remote.
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n) Contingent assets

The Authority does not recognize a contingent asset. but discloses details ofa possible asset whose

existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future

events not wholly within the control of'the Authority in the notes to the financial statements.

Contingent assets are assessed continually lo ensure that developments are appropriately reflected
in the financial statements. ll'it has become virtually certain that an inflow ofeconomic benefits

or service potential will arise and the asset's value can be measured reliably. the asset and the

related revenue are recognized in the linancial statements of the period in which the change

occurs.

o) Nature and purpose of resen'es

The Authority creales and maintains reserves in terms ofspecific requirements. The Authority
maintains general reservcs to be used both lbr purchase of fixed assets and day to day operations
oithe Authority the details ol'which are shown in the stalement ofchanges in net assets.

p) Changes in accounting policies and estimates - IPSAS 3

The Authority recognizes thc ell'ccts ofchanges in accounling policy retrospectively. The effects

of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is

impractical.

q) Employee benelits - IPSAS 25

Retirement benefi t plans

The Authority provides retirement benefits lor its permanent and pensionable employees. Further

an amount equ ivalent to 3 I % of basic salary is sct aside as gralu ity lor all employees on contract.

The Authority's contribution krwards employee pension scheme and gratuity for those on contract
is charged to the statement of'flnancial perlbrmance in the year to which the employees rendered

their services to the Authority. 'l'he Authority will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay

t'urther contributions if the lund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits

relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

r) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in loreign currencies are initially accounted tbr at the ruling rate ofexchange on the

date of the transaction. 'l'rade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are reported

at the statement ol'tlnancial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on that date.

Exchange differences arising fiom the settlement ofcreditors. or from the reporting ofcreditors
at rates dift'erent tiom those at which they were initially recorded during the period, are recognized

as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

s) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized against qualilying assets as part ofproperty, plant and equipment.
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Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which lhe asset is being acquired or

constructed and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when construction of the

asset is complete. Further bonowing costs are charged to the statement of financial performance.

t) Related Parties

The Authority regards a related party as a person or an Authority with the ability to exert control

individually or jointly, or to exercise signilicant int'luence over the Authority, or vice versa.

Members of key management are regarded as related parties and comprise of the Board of
Directors, Executive Director and Deputy Directors.

u) Service Concession Arrangements

The Authority analyses all aspects of service concession arrangements that it enters into in
determining the appropriate accounting treatment and disclosure requirements. In particular.

where a private party contributes an asset to the arrangement, the Authority recognizes that asset

when, and only when, it controls or regulates the services the operator must provide together with

the asset, to whom it musl provide them, and at what price. ln the case ofassets other than 'whole-

of-life' assets, it controls. through ownership, beneficial entitlemenl or otherwise - any signiticant

residual interest in lhe asset at the end ofthe arrangement. Any assets so recognized are measured

at their fair value. To the extent that an asset has been recognized. the Authority also recognizes

a corresponding liability, adjusted by a cash consideration paid or received.

v) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call

and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are readily

convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignilicant risk of changes in value.

Bank account balances include amounts held at various commercial banks at the end of the

financial year and Mpesa bulk payment account.

w) Comparative figures
Where necessary comparative figures firr the previous financial year have been amended or

reconfigured to confbrm to the required changes in presentation.

x) Subsequent Events - IPSAS l4
There have been no events subsequent lo the financial year end with the significant impact on lhe

financial statements lor the year ended June 30. 2023.
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5. Significant Judgements and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the Authority's llnancial statements in conlormity with IPSAS requires

management to make.judgments. estimates and assumplions that affecl the reported amounts of
revenues. expenses. assets and liabilities. and lhe disclosure ofcontingent liabilities, at the end of
the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in

outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount ofthe asset or liability aflbcted

in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources olestimation uncerlainty al the
reporting date. thal have a significanl risk ofcausing a material adjuslment to the carrying amounts
ofassets and liabilities within the next tlnancial year, are described below. The Authority based
its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidaled financial stalements
were prepared. Ikrwever. existing circumstances and assumptions about l'uture developments may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control ofthe Authority. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. IPSAS I . 140

Useful lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values ofassets are assessed using the fbllowing indicators to inform
potential future use and value from disposal:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

'l-he condition ol'the asset based on the assessmenl ofexperts employed by the Authority
The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and processes
'fhe nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed

Availability of f'unding to replace the asset

Changes in the market in relation to the asset

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions were raised and management delermined an estimate based on the information
available. Additional disclosure ofthese estimates ofprovisions is included in Note 21.

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimale of the expenditure required to settle
the obligation at the reporting date. and are discounted to present value where lhe eflbct is

material.

The Authority reviews its obligations at each balance sheet date lo delermine whelher provisions

need to be made and il'there are any contingent liabilities.
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6. (a) Transfers from Ministries, Departments and Agencies

(b) Transfers from Ministries, Departments and Agencies Cash Reconciliation

7. Rendering of services

E. Other Income

State
Department
for Trade

Amount
recognized to
Statement of

Comprehensive
Income

KShs

Amount
deferred

under
deferred

income
KShs

Amount
recognised

in capital
fund.

Total
transfers

2022-2023

KShs KShs

Prior year
2021-2022

KShs
State
Department
for Trade 349.999.999 349.999.999

349 999 999

340.500,000
Total 340,s00,000

State Department
for Trade

Amount
recognized to
Statement of

Comprehensive
Income

KShs

Amou nt
deferred

under
deferred

income
KShs

Amount
recognised

in capital
fund.

Total
transfers

2022-2023

Prior year
2021-2022

KShs KShs KShs

State Department
lor Trade 337.499.999 337,499,999 360,490,000
Receivable grants r2,500,000 12.500.000 (20,000,000)

Total 349,999,999 349,999,,999 340.490.000

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs

Registration of complaints t-ees

Kshs
2.505.365 2.002.8 r6

Destruction and storage fees 7. r03.868 I1,933,225
Recordation lees

r 3,335,069 I 39.355
lmport Permit lees 33,482,490
ISIPPE Participation fees 2t6.020
Total revenue from the rendering of
servlces 56,642,812 14,075J96

Descriplion 2022-2023
Kshs

202t-2022
Kshs

Other Income 74.574 19.499
Total other income 74,574 19,499
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9. (a)Use ofgoods and services

(b)Use ofgoods and services Cash Reconciliation

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs Kshs

Communication supplies and services 10.644,297 5,457,556
Printing, advertising and services 2.355,684 1,8 t3,254
Domestic travel and daily subsistence
allowance 26.3s5.259 21.684.445
Foreign travel and daily subsistence
allowance 9,I t9.414 t,542.852
Audit fees 800.000 800,000
Hospitalities and services 6,098,565 4,017,69t
Professional and consultancy servrces 9.721,348 2.992.434
Awareness & Promotional activities t3,404.607 I 5,636,832
Office and General suppl ies/serv rces 6,833.246 5,00 r ,000
Electricity 2.306,362 2,34t,462
Fuel, oil and lubricants 4,722,668 3,2 15,05 I

General Insurance

Bank & Mpesa charges
r,875,986

643.868
t,695.2t4

221.402
Destruction charges r.553.450
Transpon cost- for seized goods 3 83.880 84.592
Research 7.8 t9.583 3,629,946
Rental 3 5,01 0, I 04 32,831,642
Securitv costs 2,359,680 2,250,560
Corporate social responsibil ity 495.500 199.580
Parking charges

Membership and subscription fees

1,969,330 1,656,640

r,488,985 I ,l 85,520
Training 8,226,420 7,693,661
Tolal use of goods and services 154,1EE,236 l10,95rJ34

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs Kshs

Communication, supplies and servrces 10,644,297 5,457.556
Printing, advertising and services 2,3 55,684 t,8 t 3,254
Domestic travel and daily subsistence
allowance 26.355.259 21,684,445
Foreign travel and daily subsistence
allowance 9,1t9.414 1,542,852
Audit fees 800,000 800.000
Hospitalities and services 6,098,5 65 4,017,691
Professional and consullancv services 9.721,348 2,992.434
Awareness & Promotional activities 13.404,607 15.636.832
Office and Ceneral supplies/serv rces 6,833,246 5,00 t,000
Electricity 2.306,362 2,341,462
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10. (a) Employee Costs

(b) Employee Costs Cash Reconciliation

l6l 5 06

Fuel. oil and lubricants 4,722,668 3.215,05 r

Ceneral Insurance 1,875,986 |,695,214
Bank & Mpesa charges 643,869 22t,402
Destruction charges 1,553,450
Transport cost- for seized goods 3 83,880 84.592
Research 7.8 19.5 83 3,629,946
Rental 32.831,6423 5,0 10, | 04
Security costs 2,359,680 2,250,560

199,580Corporate social responsibil ity 495.500
Parking charges r.656,640

I,185,520Membership and subscription fees

Training 8.226,420

l.ei9J!q
1.488.985

2.693.661
Less: Current year payables (983.220) (6.583.E49)

Add: Previous year payables 6,s83,849 13,980,772
Less: Previous year prepayments (1,640,619) (5,840,519)

Add: Current year prepayments 2,065,044 1,640,6r9
Less: Previous year inventory (3,123,s60) (3,906,039)

3,123,560Add: Current year inventory 4,345,774
Less: Previous year staff receivables ( l,017,410)
Add: Current year slalT receivables

Total use ofgoods and services l12J48,468

DescriDtion 2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs Kshs

Salaries and wages 199.062,720 t86,350,098
Employee related costs - contributions to
pensions, NSSF and medical aids 4t.647 516

| ,992.01 3

39.977,364
Casuals and intems | ,625,438
Employee related costs - contributions to
staff sratuity 5, 140,2 l9 551.3 r0
Employee costs 247,842,468 228,504210

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs Kshs

Salaries and wages t99.062,720 r86,350,0e8
Employee related costs - contributions to
pensions, NSSF and medical aids 41,647,516 39,977.364
Casuals and interns t,992,013 1,625,438
Employee related costs - contributions to
staffgratuity 5.140.2t9 55 1,3 t0
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I l. Remuneration of Directors

12. Depreciation and amortization expense

13. Repairs and Maintenance

Less: Previous year Medical and WIBA
DreDaYments (5J19,239) (5,750,939)

Add: Current year Medical and WIBA
Drepayments 6226.306 sJle23e
Less: Current yerr gratuity payable (4,446,5611 (368,863)

Add: Previous year gratuity payable 368,86J J40,92 r

(96.6771 (10.9E7)
Less: Current year employee liability
DaYable

10,987 6,848,102
Add: Previous year employee liability
payable

(19,499)Less: Sleff recoverv
Em plovee costs 244,586,t47 234,862,184

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs Kshs

Board committees' conferences and
sem inars

671 .400.00 460.s40

Directors emoluments 6,340,000.00 4,120,000

Other allowances 6,686,685.73 4,422,165

Chair's Honoraria t,044,000.00 803,775

Total director emoluments t4,742,,085,73 9,806,4E0

Descriplion 2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs

25.634,562
Kshs

I I,642,570
Intangible assets

Depreciation govt. grant reslatement
Total depreciation and amortization 25,634,562 11,642,570

Description 2022-2023
Kshs

2021-2022
Kshs

Bu ildings and stations 413.946 5l 5.330
Vehicles and Cycles 2,605,640

719.095
2,036,863

Furniture and Equipment 47.880
Computers and accessories 885.880 905.969

Communication Equipment 328.712 67.820

Total reDairs and maintenance 4,953,273 3,573,E62
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14. Cash and cash equivalenls

15. Receivables from exchange contracts

16. Receivables from non-exchange contracts

17. Inventories

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs Kshs

a) Current account -Kenya Commercial Bank
t t t9056322
Kenya Commercial Bank
I 128466090
Kenya Commercial Bank
1137615t68

MPESA 99I653

64,133,666 260,420,196

190,592,95 I 27,652,91

70,735,981 I 55,007,653

32s,099 32s,099
Total cash and cash equivalents 325.787,697 443.405.859

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs Kshs

Current Receivables
Medical insurance 6, t45,9 I 3 5,018,359
Rent 9t7,756 1.024.012
Service Charge
Croup Personal Insurance 80.394 300,880
Parking
General lnsurance 1,147.288 6 t6,606
Fuel
Total current receivables 8,29rJ51 6,959,857

Description 2022-2023
Kshs

2021-2022
Kshs

Govemment recurrent grants 12,500,000
Total 12,500,000

Description 2022-2023 202t-2022
Kshs Kshs

Consumable stores 4.345.774 3,123,560
Total inventories at the lower ofcost and
net realizable value 4545,774 3,123,s60
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment

Furniture
rnd fittin s

Land &
Buildins Motor vehicles Computers

Olfice
Ec;uipment

Leesehold
ImproYemeot Totsl

Cost Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

As at 30 June 2021 r r t.00i.476 I l.147.5 82 24.356.i00 t6.798.702 37.890.596 223.396.656
Additions 0
As at 30 June 2022 l r r,00J,476 33J47,582 21Js6J00 16,798,702 J7,890,596 221J96,656
Additions 75.998.000 2.720.100 6.2 I t.2i8 49.200 1. r40.000 86. t lE.5i8
Revaluation 0 i7.100.000 7.820,i50 4.995.150 7.382.900 0 57.298.600
As at 30 June 2023 75,998,000 148,r03,476 43,888,032 35,562,888 24,230,802 39,0t0,596 366,813,794

Deprecistion

At J0 June 2021
104,936,833.23 28,500,425.27 24,116,562.30 14,776,252.66 34,256,605.69 206,586,679.r 5

Depreciation
6.066.641.64 | .63s. 123.32 r62.91i.60 662,778.36 3.n5.1r2.73 r 1,642,569.65

At J0 June 2022
I I 1,003,{74.87 30,135,548.59 24219,175.90 r5,439.0J1.02 37 )7 t ,7 18.42 2 t8,229,248.80

Depreciation
7.599.800.00 9,275.000.00 2.875,421 .00 j.7i t.794.00 1.591.791.00 560.757.00 25,634.563.00

Revaluation Loss 0 37,r00,000 7,820,350 4,995,350 7,382,900 0 57,298,600

At 30lune 2023
7,599,800.00 L37,378,474.47 40,831,319.59 33,(xr5,619.90 24,4L3,722.O2 37,912,475.42 301,152,411.80

Net book values

At 30tr June 2022 3212,034 76,824 r J59,67 r 518,874 s,167,407

As at 30 June 2023
68,398,2q).00 19,274,999.211 3,056,712.E1 2,556,268.00 (182,920.02) 1,(xrE,120.18 55,651,381.70
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Descri tion 2022-2023

Kshs

2021-2022

Kshs
Trade payables 183.22t 4,983,849
Audit Fees (Provision) 800.000

96,677
1.600,000

10.987Employee Payable (Final dues)

Total trade and other payables I,079,898 6,594,836

19. Trade and other Pavables

20. Current provisions

Description Gratuitv Total

Balance b/d 01.07.2022
Kshs Kshs

368,863 368,863
Additional prov isions 5, t40,2 t 8 5. I40,218
Provisions utilized ( r .062,520)
Total Provisions as at
30.06.2023

1.062.520

4,446,561 4,446.561

21. Financial Risk Management

The Authority's activities expose il to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity
risks and effects of changes in foreign currency. The Authority's overall risk management

programme focuses on unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks to

minimise the potential adverse effect ofsuch risks on its performance by setting acceptable levels

of risk. The Authority does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that credit is

only extended to customers with an established credit history.

The company's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

(i) Credit risk

The Authority has exposure to credit risk. which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to

pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises tiom cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with
banks, as well as other receivables (staffl imprests).

Management assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial

position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or

external assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors. The amounts presented in the

statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by the

Authority's management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current economic

environment.
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Financial Risk Management
The carrying amount of tlnancial assets recorded in the financial statements representing the
Authority's maximum exposure lo credit risk without taking account ofthe value ofany collateral
obtained is made up as follows:

Fully
performing

Kshs
Past due

Kshs
At 30 June 2023
Receivables tiom exchan ge transactions 8,29 1.3 5 I 8,29 r,35 |
Receivables fiom non-exchange
transactions

r 2,500.000 t2,500,000

Bank balances 325.787.696 325,787.696
Totfll 346,579,047 346,579,047
At 30 June 2022
Reccivables liom exchange transactions 6.959.85 7 6.959,857
Receivables from non-exchange
transaclions
Bank balances
Totel

443,405,859
450J6s,716

443.405,859
450J65,7 r 6

Total
amount

Kshs

The customers under the fully perform ing category are paying their debts as they continue trading.
The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for uncollectible
amounts that the company has recognised in the flnancial statements is considered adequate to
cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts.

The board ofdirectors sets the Authority's credit policies and objectives and lays down parameters

within which the various aspects of credit risk management are operated.

(ii) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility fbr liquidity risk management rests with the Authority's directors, who
have built an appropriale liquidity risk management framework fbr the management of the

Authority's shorl, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The
Authority manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasls and actual cash

flows.

The table below represents cash flows payable by the Authority under non-derivative linancial
liabilities by their remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed

in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within l2 months equal

their carrying balances. as the impact ofdiscounting is not significant.

Total
Kshs Kshs

At 30 June 2023
Trade payables 78.971 904.250 983.22t
Employee payable
(Final dues)

85690 10.987 96.677

Less than I
month

Between l-3
months

Over 4
months
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Cratuity 475.285 172.476 3.798.801 4,446.561
5,526,459Total

4,879,599 104.250 4,983,849
At 30 June 2022
Trade payables

Provisions (audit f'ees) 800.000
Gratuitv 368.863

800.000 1,600.000
368.863

Employee payable
(Final dues)

t0.987 t0.987

915,237 6,963,699Total 6,048,462

t ANTI.COUNTERFEIT AUTHORITY (ACA)
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

(iii)
Market risk

The board has put in place an intemal audit I'unction to assist it in assessing the risk faced by the

Authority on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and efTectiveness of its internal

accounting and operational controls.

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices. such as interest rate, equity prices

and foreign exchange rates which will affect the Authority's income or the value of its holding of
financial instruments. The objective ofmarket risk managemenl is to manage and control market

risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. Overall responsibility
for managing market risk rests with the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

The Authority's Risk management committee is responsible for the development of detailed risk

management policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management Committee)

and for the day to day implementation oflhose policies.

There has been no change to the Authority's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.

a. Foreign currency risk

The Authority has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises through complaint and

fees received from clients that are done in currencies other than the local currency. Invoices

denominated in fbreign currencies are paid after the date ofthe invoice and conversion at the time
ofpayment is done using the prevailing exchange rate.

The Authority did not have a carrying amount of fbreign currency denominated monetary assets

and monetary liabilities during the financial year 2022/2023.

b. Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the Authority's financial condition may be adversely affected as a

result ofchanges in interest rate levels. The Authority's inlerest rate risk arises liom bank deposits.

This exposes the company to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate risk exposure arises

mainly from interest rate movements on the company's deposits.

Management of interest rate risk
To manage the interest rate risk, management has endeavoured to bank with institutions that offer
favourable interest rates.
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Sensitivity analysis

The Authority analyses its interest rate exposurc on a dynamic basis by conducting a sensitivity
analysis. This involves determining the impact on profil or loss of dellned rate shifts. The

sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign

exchange rales, remain constant. The analysis has been performed on the same basis as the prior
year and the Authority taced no major interest rate risk during the financial period under review.

(iv) Capital Risk Managemenl

The objective ofthe Authority's capital risk managemenl is to safeguard the Board's ability to
continue as a going concern. The Authority capital structure comprises of the lollowing funds:

2021-2022
Kshs Kshs

Accumulated Fund 191.872.996 I 15.874.996
Revaluation reserve 69,429,t31 15,904,628
Retained earnings 166,770,120 207,413,360
Capital reserve
Total funds

36.502.000
464,574,247

il 2.500,000
451,692,984

Total borrowings
I -ess: cash and bank balances t32s.787.6e6) (441.405,859)

Nel debt/(excess cash and cash equivalents) 88.786.55 r 8.287.t25

Gearing 30v"

2022-2023

22. Related Party Balances

Nature of related parfv relationshios

Entities and other parties related to the Authority include those pa(ies who have ability to

exercise control or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions.

Related parties include managemenl personnel, their associates and close f'amily members.

Government of Kenva

'Ihe Govemment of Kenya is the principal sharcholder of the Authority. holding 100% of the

Authority's equity interest.

Olher related Darties include:

i)

ii)
iii)
iv)
v)

The Ministry of 'Irade. lnvestment and Industry (MITI)
County governments.

Other State Corporations.

Board oidirectors.
Key management.
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a) Purchases from related parties 2022-2023 202t-2022
2.306.362 2,34t,462Purchases of electricity from KPLC

Rent expenses paid to government agencies 23,858,804 17.373.187

Training and conference fees paid to
govemment agencies 4,470,080 82.4.640

Parking fees paid to County govemment

and govemment agencies 1,834,000 980.000

Tolal 32,,469246 21,519,289

b) Grants from the government

Grants from national govemment 345,999,999 340.s00,000

Grants from county govemment

Total 349,999,999 340,500,000

c) Key managemenl compensation
17,742.086 4,923,775Directors' emoluments

Compensation to key management 53,348,980 42,242,065

Total 71,091,066 47,,165,E40

Transactions with related rties

23. Contingent Liability

The Authority does not recognize a contingent liability, but discloses details of a possible

obligation whose existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more

uncertain future events not wholly within the control ofthe Authority in the notes to the financial

statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or
service potential is remote.

,i affirffil
i::',iv---".b

Court cases

Authority
againsl the 702,124,784/:

Total 702,124,784t:

The Authority had nine (9) civil cases and appeals concluded that had adverse judgements. The
Authority has filed an appeal in most of the cases and they are ongoing. The Authority also
discloses contingent liability over twelve ( l2) ongoing court cases within the period.

The tables below give the details ofthe cases

No. Csse Citstion Date ofAward Amount
I Kakamega Chief Magistrate's Court Civil Case

No. 264 of 2016 Peter Mbaria Kariuki Versus
Anti-Counterfeit Aulhority & 3 Others
(Appealed vide High Court of Kenla at
Kakamega Civil Appeal No. 64 Of 2019 Anti-
Countetfeil AuthoriA Yersus Peler Mbaria
Kariuki & 3 (Xhers)

196 March 2021
Kshs. 3,100,000/= together
with cos$ ofthe suit and
interest.

2 Nairobi Chief Magistrate in Civil Case No.
6431 of 2013 Esther Mawia Mwania T/A
Tonermart Entemrises Versus Anti-Counterfeit

4fr April 2018
Kshs. 4.761,600/= together
with costs ofthe suit and
interest.
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3

Agency & Anothet ( Appealed vide Milimoni
High Court Civil Appeal No. 2l 5 of 2018
Anti-Counleteil Aulhoritl Versus Eslher
Mawia Mwonio & Anolher)
Nairobi High Court Petition 320 of20l5
Francis John Wanyange & Another Versus
Anti-Counterfeit Agency & 4 Others (
Appealed vide Coua olAppeal at Noirobi
Civil Appeal No. 173 of 2019 Anti-Countetkit
Aulhotiu Versus Froncis John llanv-ange &
I Uhen)

23'd Novemher
2018

Kshs. 350.000/= plus costs
ofthe suit.

4 Mombasa Judicial Review Application No. 60
of20l8:

Republic Venus The Executive Director. Anti-
Counterl'eit Agency & the Registrar of
Trademarks. Ex Purte Uwin lnvestments Africa
Company l,imited (Appeuled vide Coun of
Appeol ut Mombaso Civil Appeal No. I 14 of
2019 Anli-Counlerfeil Aulhoriry Versus Uwin
InvesTmenls Co. Limited & Anolher)

2'd December
2022

Kshs. 6.830.508/=.
183,896 USD plus costs of
the suit.

5 Employment And Labor Relations Court at

Nairobi Cause No.653 of20l2 Joyce N.
Simitu Versus Stephen O. Mallowah.
Lawrence M. Bokoro & Anti-Counterfeit
Aulhority

t4tr June 2019
Kshs. 600,000/= plus costs
ofthe suit.

6 Nairobi High Court Petition No. l2l ol20l8
Stanley Magare versus. Anti-Counterfeit
Agency & 2 Othe's (Appeoled vide Court of
Appeal at Nairobi Civil Appeal No. E335 ttf
2020 A nti-(bu nlerfeit A ulhorit! Venu s.

Slonlet, Masore & 2 Ahers)

,lh June 2020
Kshs. 100,000/= plus costs
ofthe suit.

7 High Coun at Embu Petition No. 5 ol20l9
John Kariuki T/A Khil'am Ltd Versus Uzuri
Foods (Appealed vide Nlei Cou,7 ofAppeal
Civil Appeal No.7 t[
2021 Anticounlerleit
Aulhotil! Versus John
Kariu*i T/A Khifum Limiled & 2 Others)

176 November
2020

Kshs. 550,000/= plus costs
ofthe suit-

8 Mombasa E.[,.C. Miscellaneous Application
No. 8046 of2022 Sherman Nyongesa &
Mutubia Advocates Versus Anti- Countert'eil
Agency

126 April 202J
Kshs 175,256/= plus costs
of the suit.

I 5rh June 202J
Kshs. 500,000/= together
with costs ofthe suit and
interest.

9 Milimani F)mployment and Labour Relations

Court Cause No. El2712022 Charles Muchiri
Kimani Versus Anti Counterlbit Authority &
Law Society of Kenya
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ONGOING CASES

No. Crse Citation Continsent LirbiliW
I High Court of Kenya at Nairobi

Civil Case No. 160 of20l6 James
Kimani Mwangi & 2 Others Versus
Anti-Counterfeit Authority & 3

Others

Kshs. 603.500.000/= togerher with costs of the suit and

interest.

2 Chief Magistrate's Court at Nyeri
Civil Case No. 390 of20l7 Adan
Abass Nusra Versus Anti-
Counlerfeit Authority

Ksh. 100.000/= plus costs ofthe suit

J Chief Magistrate's Court at Nairobi
Civil Case No. 45 of20l9 Peter
Mugucia Versus Anti Counterfeit
AulhoriW

Kshs. 18. 571. 400r- plus costs olthe suit

4 High Court of Kenya at Nakuru
Petition No. 2 of 2019 Mavazi
Textile and Branding Limited
Versus Anti-Counterfeit Authority
& Another

a) Loss ofdaily sales al Ksh. 20,000/= per day from l4th
January 2019.

b) Loss of production 20 pairs of shoes per day at Ksh.

1,500/= from l4th January 2019.

c) Loss ofwork for workshop workers 3 at Ksh. 500/= per

day from l4th January 2019.

d) Loss of uniform sales at Ksh. 10,000/= from l4th
JanuNy ?020.

e) Director's remuneration at Ksh. 5,000/= from l4th
lanuary 2020.

t) Costs ofthe suit

5 High Court ol Kenya at Nairobi No
E250 of2020 Match Masters
Limited Ve6us Kenafric Matches
Limited & Anti-Counterfeit
A uthority

Pay costs olthe suit at High Courl lo be taxed and ascenained
by the Taxing Master.

6 Eldoret High Court Civil Case No.
20 of 2021 Jeremiah Kigoro Versus
Anti-Counlerfeit Authority & 2
Others

Kshs. 350,000/= plus costs of the suit.

7 Nakuru High Court Civil Suit No
8003 of 2023:

Benson Maingi Karaka Vs. Duncan
Mugutu Muchemi & 7 Others

Costs ofthe suil

8 Mombasa High Court Civil Case
No. E028 of2023:

Narodhco (Kenya) Ltd & Others
Versus J.S. Staedtler- Gmbh & Co.
Kg, Anti-Counlerfeit Authority and
Another

Kshs. 55,002,240/= plus costs ofthe suit.
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24. Capital Commitments

2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs Kshs

Authorised for 140,000,000 140,000,000
Authorised and contracted for

r 40,000,000 r40,000,000

Ca al commitments

Totel
The Authority committed Kshs. l40M for the acquisition of two go downs in Nairobi.

25. Events after the reporting period

There were no material adjusting and non-adjusting events alier the reporting period.

26. Ultimate and Holding Authority

The Authority is a State Corporation under the Ministry of Trade, Investment and Industry. lts
ultimate parent is the Government of Kenya.

27. Currency

The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs).

9 Milimani High Court Commercial
Case No. E47412022:

Puma Se Vs- Wilka Timers and

General Merchants Limited &
Anti-Counterfeit Authority
(lnterested Par1y)

Costs ofthe suit

l0 Nairobi High Court Constitutional
and Human Rights Pelition No.
E536/2022"

Kenya Pharmaceutical Distributon
Association & Another Vs. Anti
Counterfeit Authority & 6 Others

Costs ofthe suit.

tl Milimani High Court Commercial
Case No. E I 75 of 2023:

Beyond Opinion Business
Solutions Limited Vs. Manji Food
lndustries, Christopher Nzioka &
Anti-Counterfeit Authorify

Costs ofthe suiI.

t2 Milimani High Court Commercial
Case No. E2l2 of 2023:

Mariya Group t-imited Vs. Anti-
Counledeit Authority & Rapid
Cosmetics Enterprise Limited

Costs ofthe suit
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Appendix I: PROGRESS ON FOLLOW Up OF AUDITOR Rf,COMMENDATIONS

The following is the summary of issues raised by the extemal auditor, and management comments that were provided to the auditor. we have nominatedfocal persons to resolve the various issues as shown below with the associated tirie-frame within which we expect the issues to be resolved.

Not Resolved
As previously reported and as discloscd at Note 2s-
review oI records revealed pending legal
proceedings against the Authority that may, if
successful, have significant impact on ils
operations. This includes five (5) civil cases with a
contingenr liability of Kshs. 6,36 1,600 which had
adverse rulings but rhe Authority appealed against
the ruling. Therc is also a case where an accused
was charged with possession ofcounterfeit electric
bulbs and accessories but was acquined of the
charges in a court of law in 2015. However. the
accuscd persons and others instituted a civil case
at Milimani Law Cou(s in 2016 seeking for
special damages of Kshs. 603,500.000 against the
Authority for unlawful arestt malicious
prosecution and destruction of property. Although,
the Authority relcased part of the goods seized to
accused persons in July 2015, they complained
fr,a'. the remaining goods had been destroyed and

Reference
No. on the
External
a udit
report

ssue/Observations from Auditor Focal point
person to resolve
the issue

Status
(Resolved/

Not
Resolved)

Timeframe

This is Pcnding hearing and determination belbre rte
Coun ofAppeal.
- Civil Appeat No. 215 of2018 ACA vs. Es,

Mawia Mwania & Ano.
Appeal pending hearing and dercrmination belbr
Coun - direcrions to be given on I l.,October 2021.- lndusrialCause No.653 of20l2 Joyce N. Simitu vs.

ACA
Pending payment.

- Authority appealed vide Civil Appeal No.473 of
2019 Anti-Counlerfeit Aurhority v. Francis John
Wanyange & 4 Others.

Matter is pcnding determination bclore the Court of
Appeal.
- Authoriry appealed vide Civil Appeal No.7 of202 t

AntFC ounterl'eit Authority Vcrsus John Kariuki 1/A
Khifam Limited & 2 Others.

Matter is pending determination belbre rhe Coun of
Appeal.

Manrg€ment Comments

Authority appealed vide
2020 Anti-Counrerfeir A
Magare & 2 Others.

r rppeal No. E335 ol'
uthority Versus. Stanley

Director Legal
ServiceVCorporation
Secretary

June 2024

!s 1.e a5.

they cou'd not take destroyed or damaged goods
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R"r- r on clfectiveness ofinternal controls, risk

management !nd governance

Informatioo and CommuDication Technology

lhc Anti-Counterfeit Authority, in the strategic

plan lbrmulatcd va ous strategic objectives which

include integration of lnlbrmation and

Communication fechnology {lCT) in operations

and to promotc good govemance. 'Io achieve the

objcctives, the IC'l' function is required to develop

and implement an eUicicnt framcwork for data

integrity cnd IC-f security. Howevsr, as at the time

o[ audit, management had not pul in place the

Ibllowing controls:
. lnformation 1'echnology (lT) strategic

plan that suppons business reqtrirements

and ensures thal IT spending remsins

within the approved lT strategic plan

o A formal. documented and tested

emcrSency proccdurc.
. IT continuity plan and disaster recovery

plan, IT continuity plan and disaster

recovery plan kept ofl'-site, Backups

stored in a securc offsite storage facility.
In the circumstances, failure to develop and

implement Ilusiness Continuity Plan and disaster

recovery plan, establish off-site back up facilities

may expose the authority to possible loss of
business in the event ot disasters.

r 'i-t - ,+-

Exeoutive Direclor
Dr. Robi Mbugua Njorbge
Date: 31.08.23

Resolved ll'lr.e 2024Director Corporate

Services
The Authority with donor support from TradeMark

Atiica has set up an ofl'site back up facility.

The IT division developed the IT stratcgic plan in the

financial year 2020/2021 which was approved by the

Board.

Thc corporate Business Continuity plan has been

drafted that include the l'l'BCP and Disaster Recovery

Plan in the current financial year 202212023

l)

l)

2)
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Appendix II: PROJECTS IMPLEMENTEI) BY THE ENTITY

'l'he Authority is implenrenting sevcral pro.jccts lirndod by I)|ll) through'l radcMark Aliica and

Govemment ol Kenya (GoK).

Kshs. I ..17.608.700 NoliYl0ltl/l9to
liY 2021/l l

No

NoliYl0l6/17to
l:Y l02l/l_1

Ksh 110.000.000 No

Note: The llnancial reporting and procuremcnt o t' I)igitalization ol A('A cnli)rccnrenl opcralions is

undenakcn br 'l radcMark Aliiea.

Status of Projects Complction

li7 608.700 I'MAl] 7.608.700 r [. r85.7]0 I I2.l 85.710It7

-i0 K(t.10.000.0(x) 7 i.998.000

277,608,700 r88.18J.720

H0.000.000 75.998.(XX)

277,608,700 I8tt,I ti3,720

Project Title Projec{
Number

Donor Period/duretlon Donor
Commitment

S€perste
donor
r€porting
required
rs per the
donor
asneemenl

Consolldrtcd
itr tb6e
finencld
stetamentr

I)igitalization
of ACA
en forcement
opcral ions

N/A t)I:II)/1'M I:A

Acq u is it ion
of Regional
Anti
C()unlerleiI
Authoritl'
I:xh ibit
Warehouse

N/A (loK

No Pr0Iect
Total
project
cost (Ksh)

Totd
erpendd to
date (Kshs)

Comple
tiot o/,

to drte

Budget
(K3h3)

Actual
(IGhr)

Sourcec of
funds

I
Digitization of
ACA operations

,)

Acqu isition ol
Rcgional Anti
Countcrf'eit
Authoritl t:xh ibit
Warehousc

TOTAL
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Appendix III: TRANSFERS FROM OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES

Name of the
MDA/I)onor
Transferring
the funds

Date
received as

per bank
strtement

Nature:
RecurrenU
Developme
nUOthers

Totel
Amount -
KES

Where
Recognized Total

Transfcrs
during the
Year

Statement of
Finencicl
Performence

Ministry ol
Trade.

Investment and

Industry

18.08.22

Recurrent

28,333,333 28.333.333 28,333,313

07.10.22 56,666,666 56,666,666 56,666,666

02.12.22 85.000,000 85.000.000 85.000.000

02.05.23 82.500.000 82,500,000 82,500,000

12.06.23 85.000.000 85,000,000 85,000,000

06.07.21 12,500,000 12,500,000 12.500.000

Total 349,999,999 349,999,999 349,999,999
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Appendix IV: INTER-ENTITY CONFIRMATION LETTER
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